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Mobhilehomes

SENATOR WILLIAM A. CRAVEN
CHAIRMAN

INFORMATION PAPER

HEARING ON MOBILEHOME IN-PARK INSPECTIONS

OCTOBER 22, 1985

ESCONDIDO, CALIFCRNIA

Background

The Mobilehome Parks Act, commencing with Health and Safety
Code Secticn 18200, is the legislative authority for the
Department of Housing and Community Development to regulate the
construction, use, maintenance, and occupancy of mobilehome parks
and the installation, use, maintenance and occupancy of mobile-
homes.

Specific requirements are spelled out in the Department's
regulations, Chapter 2, Part 1, Title 25 of the California
Administrative Cecde, also known as the Mobilehome Parks Act,
detailing specific requirements which both parks and mobilehcme
installations must meet.

The regulations are quite specific and - among other things -

cover the following areas:

I. Administration and Enforcement: plans, applications,
permits, fees.

II. Park General Requirements: lot identification,
roadways, park lighting, occupied area of a mobile-
home, among others.
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ITI. Electrical Requirements: distribution systems,
overcurrent protection, equipment grounding, design
requirements, etc.

IV. Fuel Gas Requirements: installation, plans and
specifications, shutoff valves, outlets, connector
meters, etc. '

V. Plumbing Requirements: sewage disposal, installation,
drains, traps, venting, pipe size, shutcff, water
service outlets, etc.

VI. Fire Protection Standards for Parks: interface with
local regulation, lot installations, hydrants, hose
couplings, etc.

VII. Mobilehome Installations and Facilities: foundation
systems, utility connections, roof locad, wind loads,
leveling, clearances, exit facilities, installation
permit and acceptance, space reguirements, etc.

VIITI. Permanent Buildings in the Park: construction,
plumbing, electrical, fire, etc.

IX. Mobilehome Accessory Structures: space reguirements,
cabanas, awnings, carports, porches, stairways,
ramadas, storage cabinets, fences, and closed

buildings.

X. Maintenance, Use and Occupancy Reguirements: manager
available, animals, lot occupancy, driveway access,
emergency information, rubbish, substandard
installations, abatement, hearings, inspection,
notice, etc.

XI. Actions, Procedures, and Penalties: notice,

respcnsibility, suspension of permit to operate,
notice, hearing, penalties.

The Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD)
licenses some 5800 mobilehome and travel trailer parks in
California and issues, for an annual fee, an annual permit to
operate. State regulations are enforced by inspection at the
time of construction of the park and as a condition of granting
the initial permit to operate. Inspections are alsoc carried out
periodically on the basis cf the number of complaints registered
with the Department or local government concerning any one park
or on the basis of individual ccmplaints.
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HCD requlates mobilehome installations in parks through
inspection at the time of initial installation on the park space,
or as the result of a request for inspection of a mobilehome to
ensure that it meets state standards and requirements at the time
of resale. There are an estimated 630,000 mobilehomes registered
in California, apprcximately 75% of which are located in parks.

Inspections are carried out either by HCD or local govern-
ment, where local government, such as in San Diego County,
assumes the inspection duties. The Department of Housing,
however, has the largest share of inspection responsibilities in
terms of the number of parks and mobilehomes it must cover. The
Department has 55 inspectors statewide operating in coordination
with eight field offices and two main offices, cne in Northern
and -one in Southern California.

Mobilehome park inspections based on a complaint are
‘triggered by the filing of a complaint on formes provided by HCD
(sample attached). The complaints are reviewed at the field
office level where they are prioritized on an urgency or
non-critical basis. Where there is a life-threatenning
situation, complaints may often be taken over the phone.

After complaints are reviewed and prioritized, they are
assigned to an inspector, who makes an appointment to inspect the
tacility, normally within five days of the complaint. Urgent,
threatening health and safety problems are often inspected the
same or following day.

Upon the determination cof a violation, the park owner, unlecs
an emergency situation regquires immediate action, is normally
given 30 days in which to comply, after which there is a re-
inspection. 1If the violation is still not corrected, the
Department will usually, as the first approach, attempt to have
such a willful violator prosecuted under misdemeanor provisions
of the code. The response of local district attorneys in this
regard varies, but misdemeanor cases are often a low priority in
most ccunties.

Ultimately, if the violation is not corrected, after a notice
and hearing, the Department may revoke the permit to operate the
mobilehome park. However, this is a course cf last resort, since
closure of the park often does not punish the park owner as much
as the residents who live there and must now move out.
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Jurisdiction cver mobilehome parks, while primarily vested in
HCD, must also be shared with other government agencies in some
areas. Local government may zone or otherwise issue land use
permits for the building or construction of the mobilehome park
to begin with. Additionally, under the State Building Standards
Act, building standards for permanent buildings, such as a
clubhouse or a recreational facility, in a mobilehome park must
comply with regulations established by the State Building
Standards Commission. Fire regulations promulgated by local
government and administered by the Fire Marshal may prevail over
state fire standards for mobilehome parks where local standards
are stricter.

In responding to mobilehome complaints, particularly as they
concern parks, HCD and local government are responsible for
enforcing violations relating to code standards - as outlined
abcove under Title 25. Neither is responsible for enforcing civil
code provisions of the Mobilehome Residency Law (Civil Code
Sections 798 and 799.51), dealing with the lecgal relationship
between park owners and park residents, the provisions of which
are self-enforcing. '

Inspection Issues:

During the past vear, the Senate Select Committee on
Mobilehomes has received complaints directly from mobilehcme
residents, as well as through various legislators' cffices,
cencerning several inspection problems.

Spotty Enforcement

With regard toc mobilehome parks, the most freguent complaints
concern violation of park health and safety standards and
deteriorating facilities in the common areas. One problem, for
example, dealt with subsidence of a mobilehome on the space due
to improper drainage around the space, which the park owner was
unable or unwilling to repair. Complaints often involve
allegations that the Department of Housing or local government is
either slow to respond to such problems or unable to bring abcut
corrective action.

Lot Lines and Space Requirements

There have been a number of complaints involving lect line
disputes resulting from the installation of a new and larger
mobilehome in a space previously occupied by a smaller unit. The
installation of the new unit sometimes encroaches upcn the lot
of, or the space requirements for, adjacent and neighboring
homes. The Senate Select Committee on Mobilehomes dealt with
similar lot line complaints at its hearing on June 18, 1984.
Subsequently, SB 1321 (Craven) was introduced, passed by the
Legislature, and signed by the Governor. The bill, effective
January 1, 1986, will prevent either the creation or change
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(usually by the park owner) of a lot line separating adjacent
mcbilehomes if such results in a violation of state distance
requirements between the homes. Additionally, under the bill,
either the creation or change of a lot line by the park owner
will require the written approval of both the local planning
agency as well as affected residents.

Mobilehome Inspections on Resale

In some parks, park owners may require - by park rule or
regulation - that mobilehome owners obtain an inspecticn of the
mobilehome by state or local government when it is put up for
resale.

Prior to 1984, owners wishing to sell their mobilehome on i<s
in-place location in the park were subject to the so-called "17
year law." In essence this Civil Code provision was interpreted
to mean that a park owner could force most mobilehomes upon
resale to be removed from the park, unless they were between 10-
and 20 feet wide and less than 17 years of age, in order to -
"upgrade" the park. A 1983 legislative change, AB 1324 (Floyd),
provided that in addition to the 17 year standard, most
mobilehomes could not be forced from the park upon resale unless
the park owner could show they did not meet health, safety, and
construction standards required of such mobilehomes.

Legislation now pending, SB 873 (Robbins), would require that
any mobilehome inspection, for purposes of determining whether a
mobilehome should be removed from the park, shall be paid by the
individual requesting the inspection. The bill has passed the
Senate and is awaiting a hearing in January, 1986 before the
Assembly Housing Committee.

Aside from the issue of who bears the cost of the inspection,
depending on who requests it, some mobilehome residents are
concerned that inspections, even those resulting in a finding of
minor non-compliance of some items or appliances, will give park
owners a pretext on which to eject mobilehomes put up for sale
trom the park.

These are just some of the inspection issues which have been
prought to the attention ot the Committee. The Committee will
entertain testimony trom various witnesses who care to testify on
these and other inspection problems. Representatives from the
Department of Housing and Community Development will be available
to detail procedures undertaken by the Department upon receiving
a complaint concerning mobilehome parks, as well as upon the
inspection of individual mobilehomes.

# § ¢+
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Good morning, ladies and gentlemen. We will

call this meeting to order. It's a meeting of the Senate Select
Committee on Mobilehomes. I'm Senator Rill Craven, and I'm very
happy tc have you here with us here today. I hope you have not
been too inconvenienced by the parking situation here in this
vicinity. We weren't aware of that when we scheduled the meeting
here. B2Alsoc I'm so scorry to find, much to my chagrin, there is no
smoking in here. There is a purity about this community that,
hepefully, will do well as years progress. If you have the urge
to smoke, if you will just go out those doors where a sort of
pall hangs over the place, that's the smocking area cut there -
with the flora and fauna.

The Senate Select Committee on Mobilehomes was established
almost three years ago to provide the members of the State Senate
with a forum for resocurce information on mobilehome issues and
problems. Prior to that time, the Legislature had never c¢iven
recognition to the importance of mobilehome issues - affecting
perhaps as many as one million mobilehome residents in California
by establishing such a committee.

This committee is composed cof six Senators from different
parts of the state, and I would like to introcduce to vou my
colleagues with us this morning. ©Cn my far left is Senator Dan
McCorquodale, who represents Santa Clara County and other
porticons of the state in the general San Jcse area. Dan has had

a very distinguished career prior to his service in the Senate



as a County Supervisor. He is alsc Chairman of the Senate
Committee on Elections and Reapportionment, which is a very, very
important committee, to say the least. Those of us in the
political arena pay very close attention to the Elections
Committee.

The next gentleman, to Senator McCorquodale's right, is
Senator Bob Presley, who ccmes from Riverside County, and he is
one of the more senicr members of the Senate. He is known as the
gentleman who has carried more successful legislation than any
other legislator that we have. He has this past year and years
prior had a great and abiding interest in corrections and
prisons, and he also has a very facile mind. He has developed
legislation to provide for the expansion of the prison system to
take care of a growing problem, and it has all been under his
leadership.

Both of these Senators have been very, very active in helping
support mobilehome legislation and with their votes, cohsistently
on the issues, we have manaced to get what we have gotten to this
time.

At the extreme left is Lucio Lopez, who is a Sergeant-at-Arms
and behind us ic Keith Edwards, whco is another cne our Sergeants
who maintain gocd order and discipline for us in Sacramento and
on the road. They are respcnsible for the recording of the

session so that we have & complete and total record of what we



we say and do here today. If you have any questions that they
may help you with, please feel free to ask.

Bill, why den't you sit up here with us? I would like to
also intrcduce an cld friend and a colleagque from the Assembly.
Thie is Assemblyman Bill Bradley, who also has a very great
interest in mobilehome issues. He represents a good portion of
Riverside County, which is kind of the capital cf mobilehomres, T
think, and, of course, portions of this County, including the
City of Escondido.

On my right is John Tennyson, who is the Consultant to the
Senate Select Committee on Mobilehomes, and on my left is Mickey
Railey, who is our Committee Secretary. Have I covered
everybody?

The Committee is primarily a forum for looking into and
researching mobilehome problems. In addition tc monitoring
mobilehome and related housing legislation in each session of the
Legislature and publishing periodic reports, the Committee staff
assists Senatcors with mobilehome legislation and constituent
mcbilehome problems. Since late 1982, the Committee has also
held numerous hearings on various mobilehome issues throughout
the state - including the issues of mobilehome taxation,
mobilehome park rules and requlations, and adult only problems,

just to rame a few.



Today, we will be hearing testimony concerning mobilehome
inspections - inspections by the state and lccal gecvernment of
mobilehome parks as well as on-site inspection of the mcbilehomes
themselves.

Over the past year, the Committee has received ccmplaints
from a number of mobilehome residents - both directly as well as
through various legislators' offices - concerning different
aspects of mobilehome inspections.

The information paper prepared by staff - of which I hope
there are enough copies for each of you - briefly describes the
background and procedures of park and on-site inspections and
summarizes some cf the most frequent complaints.

Three of the problems which have received the most attention
in this area are:

1. The alleged spottv enforcement by the Department of
Housing or local government of park facility and
maintenance standards, established by state law and
regulaticn.

2. Inspection of new, double-wide installations in older
spaces where complaints of inadecuate or unsafe distances

between the new and neighboring hcme arise.



3. Inspecticon of a mobilehome on resale as the basis for
determining whether & home continues to meet state
health, safety, and construction standards and will be
permitted tc remain in the park

These are the inspection issues which have most frequently
been the subject of complaints brought to our attention.

The purpose of the hearing today is to hear from vou - to
hear from mobilehome residents, park cwners, state and local
government personnel entrusted with enforcing the regulations,
anad other persons concerned with these and other inspection
issues which you may wish to bring to us.

We have published an agenda for those who wish to spesk on
these inspection topics - but time allowing - we will permit
cthers from the audience to testify after those who have been
pre-scheduled have had a chance to make their presentations

We are also going to try something a little different than we
have ir past hearings. Normally, we attempt to focus or cre
gereric issue at a tme - such ac inspecticns in this case. But
we have been asked so many times to let people address other
mobilehome issues at our hearings - that we have decided - after
all the testimony and comment on the inspection questions have
been completed - to hear from those whe want to tell us about
other mobilehome problems as well - again, of course, time

allowing.



Now, let's take a look at the agenda. We will begin with
testimony on mobilehome inspecticn issues and will begin with
Leonard Wehrman of the Naational Mobile/Manufactured Home Owners
Foundation.

LEONARD WEHRMAN: Good morning, ladies and gentlemen and

Senators and Assemblyman, John and Mickey. I appreciate the
opportunity to be here today. The purpose of my testimony and
remarks today are to bring to the Senate Select Ccmmittee on
Mobilehome and to the California Legislature, and to the
mobilehome owners in rental parks in California, and to the
general public some of the key issues that I think are profound
and are making a profound impact on the mobilehome lifestyle and
peaceful enjoyment of this form of community living as they
relate to the subject matter of mobilehome inspections.

At the outset, may we express our appreciation tc you, Mr.
Chairman, and each of you for your outstanding work this year and
for vour staff work elong these same lines and in scheduling this
hearing and providing a forum to present our viewpoints on the
particular events, and may we commend each of you - particularly
you, Mr. Chairman, for your legislative efforts in the 1985
sescion. We are indeed grateful for this voice in Sacramento.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you very much.



MP. WEHRMAN: Now, I just might add to Senator McCorguodale
here that it has been sucgested because of the success of this
type of forum that, perheps, a meeting of this similar nature be
conducted in Northern California and, as suggested, it might be
in Senator McCorcuodale's area - the San Jose area - because the
same problems are existing there that vou just described. They
are prevalent in Northern California as well.

SENATCK CRAVEN: We will give that every consideration.

MF. WEHRMAN: Thank you. 2s announced in your information
handout for this hearing, we want to present this testimony and
other general subjects of mobilehome inspections. This is a very
significant and timely series of issues because of what is
happening today or, more importantly, what may be happening in
the very near future that will continue to have a long-standing
impact on the future of mobilehome communities and, frankly, how
some cof the investors and financial corporations and others:may
no loncer be interested in pursuing and exchanging rental parks
and helping the owner perceive mobilehome parks zs a sound
investment. That is not to exclude the residents' side, but tc
include the other side

The mobilehome park industry of existing communities and real

estate investment crcups for some time have been pursuing and



conducting workshops and through publications have been
advocating a course of action that has caused these key issues to
come to the surfsce. So far it appears cpenly that the prime
motivation behind such a pursuit is to enhance the profit margins
and inflated property values for the investor groups at the
expense of the homeowners in the State of California.

As T view this, and I will not dwell on all cf these
subjects, of course, but as I view it, some of the key subjects
today include:

a. Mcbilehome inspections at "resale" time.

b. Mobilehome inspections at "pre-sale" time

c. Mobilehome inspections at "installation" time.

2 lesser item I will touch on briefly is:

d. Fuel burning appliances, especially hot water heaters.

e. Inspection of mobilehome park premicses plus the

homes and the lots on a "surprise and unannounced"
basis.

f. 1Inspection of mobilehome dealer/salesperson licensees
having an established place of business within mobilehome
parks especially those operated by management personnel
and park employees on a "surprise and unannounced" basis.

o. The relationship between HCD and local government on all

of the above issues.



h. What is sometimes referred to as "security deposits." I
prefer to call it somethinog else. Just what the title
would be I can't say, but for lack of a better way I say
"Mobilehome lot occupancy deposit." It's almost a park
entrance fee as far as I'm concerned.

i. Insurance policy beneficiaries to the park owner and
other insurance disclaimers written into leases and
rental agreements, which is getting to be a current
subject and will be more prevalent in the near future.

In addition, Mr. Chairman, as you know, the general matter of
rent control and, specifically, the topic of "price fixino on
rental housing" by local government in Californie will receive
oral arquments before the United States Supreme Court on
November 12, 1985, in Washington, DC, with a decision published
sometime during the first half cf 1986.

Plus the topic of "family versus adult" mobilehome parks will
be heard by the Californiea Supreme Court probably within the next
three months. They may also be waiting for decisicns coming
through the Appellate Courts.

On several of the above topics, it is our belief thet HCD is
caught in the crossfire of competing interests, as an adminis-
trative and enforcement agency, and still tries to be sensitive

to the needs and concerns of the mobilehome owners.
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Over the years, the Department has been cooperative and
generous in their assistance to the mobilehome matters, but with
new issues that have arisen over the past year or so, at least
thus far, the administrators and management of HCD have nct
recognized the existing situation and have not scught out
alternatives and workable solutions in ccncert with the affected
homeowners. 2nd I commend you, Mr. Chairman, in this regard,
because this provides that forum.

This has, in part, brought us to this public hearing seeking
the format to pursue many of the issues and to find the answers.
It appears that much catch-up and an extra effort is necessary to
address and resolve the issues.

As a starting point, Mr. Chairman, I would like tc take on
the issue of what is commonly referred to as "resale inspec-
tions," because it has a very significant impact on the
mebilehome owner's lifestyle, and perhaps how HCD, local
government, and the mobilehome park industry are treating it. To
be verv specific I want to talk about those areas that are
strictly at resale time. In addition to the Health and Safety
Code, I would like you to bear in mind that those provisions of

the Mobilehome Fesidency Law, in particular Section 798.73, was
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being addressed in the 1985 legislative session by Senate BRill
873 which, as we all know, didn't cuite make it. 2As part of the
background of this, here is the way I perceive it to be and the
way it was explained tc me. The park managements are demanding
that the homes being sold be subjected to a thorough Health and
Safety inspection, not only for the exterior features, utility
hookups, and accessory structures, but also the complete intericr
of the home for health and safetyv purposes also covering
structural and utility systems, and a public report to be
prepared cn the violations. In many parks this is an arbitrary
and blanket reguirement directed to the homecwners regardless of
the home's age, general condition, or overall appearance.

Often the demand is made verbally either directly to the
homeowner or to the selling zgent at a time when the pressures of
selling, their upcoming relccation, and mostly by senior adults,

are at the high point. At this time the homeowners are quite

vulnerable and nearly defenseless -~ and the management pounces on
it - and HCD is an unwitting participart to the game about to be
played out.

The park management next places the full responsibility and
burden for the inspection scheduling, costs for HCD personnel and

the actual inspection, and naturally the ultimate expenditures
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to abate the violations noted on the inspection report, ontc the
selling homeowners.

In a letter I wrote to Ms. DeSantis, here is my comment to
her: "Unfortunately, when your Department is called to perform
the inspection, HCD is now caught in the crossfire and whatever
happens next only adds to an already existing dilemma of the
homeowner. When the HCD inspector arrives to perform the
inspection, it is a sensitive and anxious period for the typical
homeowner as they have no concept of what the inspector is
looking for, or what to expect, or what the consequences may be.
The Department is looked upon as being allied with the park
management and a necative attitude and general distrust develops
all tco quickly."”

Might I add in this regard how this really happens is: as
the homeowner calls for this inspection, the inspector sends out
the forms stating this is a paid service, and when the inspector
arrives on the scene, he comes in hand with a clipboard and
identification, etc., and the first guestion he generally asks
is, "May I come in?" The response of the typical homeowner is,
"of course, you can." What happens then is something I want to
describe to you - because when the inspector does cet inside,
occasionally the violations cited are technical in nature,
involving precise standards, dimensions, or reguirements. These

make it difficult for the homeowner to understand the true value
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of the viclation. Dces it really make any difference or is it a
violation because it does not conform exactly? Remember, we are
talking many times about what is perceived tc be low-cost housing
in a rental mcbilehome park. Does it have to be up to a uniform
building code standard merely because anr inspector is doing it on
a health and safety basis? Can a variance be granted? If not,
why not? Is the citation truly cconseguential?

For example, according to my investigation fcr this ingquiry
and the information from the management inspection staff at HCD,
some of the violations that are being cited, from both outside
and inside the home, and shown on the inspection report, may be
considered as "existing non-conforming," or to be "advisory
only," and are for the "general guidance of the homecwner."
Howver, perhaps at HCD, but to the general public, the home-
owner and cothers, these are not identified as such on the
inspection report - also, bear in mind, this is a public report -
that leaves all parties to believe that each violation is subject
to either abatement within 30 days or possibly administrative
acticn as a misdemeanor.

On the subject of exterior versus interior inspections, in
this section we are presenting a serious and significant
procedural question as to whether park management (including real
estate agents and mobilehcme dealers acting as a selling agent)

can legally demand that a homeowner submit to a "top to
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bottom" exterior and interior heelth and safety inspection by HCD
or any local jurisdiction or, as far as that goes, by any private
contractor.

I'd like to call your attention next to Civil Cocde Section
798.73, previously mentioned. I'll quote, if I may, from
subparagraph (d) of that code which states, "It (being the home)
ie in a siognificant rundown condition or in disrepair, as
determined by the general condition cof the mobilehome and its
acceptability tc the health and safety of the occupants and to
the public, exclusive of its age. The management shall use
reasonable discretion in determining the general condition of the
mobilehome and its accessory structures. The management shall
bear the burden of demonstrating that the mobilehome is in
significant rundown condition or in disrepair."

Taking the above wording literally and each sentence
individually and the sub—section-in total, we believe that the
park management itself has the full burden of responsibility to
demonstrate that the home is in a "significant rundown condition
or in disrepair" and not force it onto the homeowner or onto HCD.
Secondly, that the homeowner has a protected right to refuse
entrance to your HCD inspector, or any person as far as that
goes, to go inside the home to perform any inspection procedure
unless there is a valid and probable cause to do sc and then cnly

for that one single item. As I menticned before, the way



inspectors gain access tc the inside is that as they knock on the
door, they ask if they can come in. Every mobilehome owner,
being as trusting as they are, invites them in. Once inside,
thev inspect the home con the inside. Little does the homeowner
realize what they are going to get involved ir when they do sc.
Now, I also have tc state that if there is indeed a violation, I
don't believe there is any mobilehome owner who lives in a home
who wants to live in those health and safety ccnditions. Like-
wise, they certainly don't want to sell the home tc someone else,
an unsuspecting person, who is buying this particular unit to get
caught in that crossfire or conflicting interecst between theb
seller and the buyer.

We are also trying in some sense to justify the fact that
park management alsc plays a role. So somewhere we are coing to
have to strike a bslance on getting this particular action done.

On the subiject of HCD versus local jurisdiction, on these
particular resales, our chief concern in this area is that all
mobilehome owners involved in the selling of their homes are
being afforded precisely the same and equal consideration on the
inspection process, whether under HCD or local government juris-
diction assumed under Health and Safety Code 18300. We have been
told that HCD is performing the resale inspections even though
the local government has jurisdiction. Sometimes this does not

please local government and many times they are glad tc do it,
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but the point being is that the individual mobilehome owner and
others sitting out there are not familiar with whathCD's policy
is. Anyway, it does not seem tc be consistent.

On the subject of shortage cof inspection personnel, the
mobilehome owner population has been advised that there is a
budgetary limitation and a shortage of HCD inspection personnel
throughout the state. On the other hand, there appears to be an
increase in the number of resales and inspections. The resales
inspections seem to be taking a higher priority. How can HCD
justify all of this if, indeed, there is supposed to be a
shecrtege or limitation of personnel? Are other types of
inspections being putting off, ignored, or, perhaps, neglected?

Finally, we believe that any resales-type inspection that is
demanded by the park meanagement, either directly or indirectly,
to the homeowner or sellinc agent, and performed bv ECD personnel
should be particularly limited to the outside only, such as
exterior structures, utility hookups, and accessory strﬁctures,
etc. In my opinion, the park management has no legal or adminis-
trative standing to require HCD inspectors to enter or inspect
the home on the inside. Nor, in fact, should the homeowner allow
them on the inside. I say, in that regard, for the purpose of
t+he committee, HCD should have a very clear policy. Should the
homeowner or anvbody else ask the HCD inspector to leave the

premises, it is my understanding, and I firmly believe this, that



-17=

the inspector indeed will leave. He will make a report of such
and report it to his superiors either in Sacramento or Santa Ana
or wherever they are operating out of.

I also want to touch on several other things. Just taking
one single issue as a case in point and that is the policy and
practice recarding the type of hot water heater appliances that
are installed in mobilehomes in the State of California. Without
coing through the whole process - as most of you know, the
mobilehome is manufactured at the factory site and you never know
where it is going to be sited, particularly whether it is gocing
to be sited where it uses propane gas, natural gas, or perhaps
all electric. So let us isolate our subject matter to natural
gas and liguid cgas.

When that hot water heater is instelled originally at the
factory under HUD's standards, that home has tc have a propane
kit in it because, primarily, vou don't know where it is coing to
be sited. Remember, we are talking about a national standard,
not & California standard, so we are talking about federal
regulations versus state regulations. However, once that is in
under the HUD code, California has adopted and said in essence
if you change that hot water heater or replace it for any reason
whatsocever, you must replace it with an equal kind, meaning that

it must be the homecwner.
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Again, the mobilehome owner is caught in a dilemma because
what really happens in this particular instance, and according to
my survey, first of all, a hot water heater for a mcbilehome
costs abcut $40 to $60 more than cne for the conventional type
household appliance. varranties are cf a much shorter nature.
Hot water heaters for conventional housing are usually 5 to 10
vears and a mobilehome heater 1 to 2 years. There are some
definite and prcfound reasons for this, and one of them is that
the Underwriters Laboratory third-party inspection systems and
others subject those things to height and travel, but most of us
know that once a mobilehome is hooked up in a park or any plaée
else and hooked up to natural gas, it is not likely that it is
going to be moved. If it is, it has to go through another
installation process inspection anyway.

Because of the lower volume of sales in certain areas, many
suppliers do not supply mobilehome only hot water heaters so if
you walk into a Sears or Montgomery Wards or plumbing outfit that
doesn't carry those, they convince the mobilehome owner that
there is no difference between the two appliances. Therefcre,
they install what is called a conventional house hot water
heater. But in this inspection process, as I was explaining
here, once the inspector arrives on the scene, he lcoks tc see if
it has a mobilehome hot water heater, and if it does not, then he

cites that homeowner. What happens then, of course, is that the



mcbilehome owner has to take out the cld hot water heater,
regardless of how old it is, a few menths, few yeare cr whatever,
and replace it with a mobilehome only hot water heater. This
seems to be a ridiculous requirement. That is one of the issues
we are going to be discussing irn the future with HCD. How we get
out of the dilemma I don't know.

If you are asking for rumbers of units that are out there, at
this time your guess is as good as anybody else's because if you
take all central appliances, in addition to hot water heaters,
ranges, ovens and furnaces, we think there is somethina like
100,000 sittino out there right now. So as we go through all
these inspection processes that people are doing, on one side of
this we copen up a keg of worms because the mobilehome owner is
going to be very upset over the fact he has these violations in
the home and, most important, he is going to have to cure these
and, perhaps, he sees no reason for doing this because he says he
has been living there for five years, ten years, or whatever and
nothing has happenec.

So one of the challenges before HCD on this particular thing,
as Mr. John Ventura of HCD says, we don't believe the Department
can pinpecint a document where there have been significant
consecuences from the installation of 2 regular appliance in a
mobilehome. We do believe there should be a moratcrium on the
current citations already issues and the homeowner so notified

and a current decision be available at the earliest date on an
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emergency basis. Frankly, at this time we can find no
justifiable reason why a homeowner cannot install either type of
appliance in a mobilehome when it is connected to natural gas.

The last issue that I want to touch on, if I may, because I
brought up several topics. There was another letter I sent to
HCD that involves this whole inspection process, but it takes on
another thing. It is the publishing of disciplinary action taken
against - I've been saying mobilehome dealers and salespersons
although that can be expanded to parks. I think one of the
failures we have in this whole system is that we have developed a
rather closed societv in this whole process. HCD does nct really
communicate with the mobilehome owners. HCD does not communicate
with the industry part, nor does it, in the other direction.
There was a point in time pricr to the present Administration,
that indeed there were open sessions and educational meetings,
and HCD met with homeowners in groups. They don't dc that any
more. That's nct of their own accord that they are not invited
to do so.

So what we are gecing to have to get in this whole process is
a forum to be figured out and some method as to how we can better
communicate with our state acency that has such a lock on the
mobilehome community. They really control everything from
titling and registration to occupational licensing, home
inspections, park inspections, use tax and just everything, and

vet we're really not getting a two-way communcation back and
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forth so what I see grcwing out of this forum is thet
participation level where we are able to sit down and resolve all
of these issues. I see some of them as purely an administrative
process where the Director of HCD and the Chief of the‘Division
of Codes and Standards will have to take a more personal interest
in what is going on and, at least, direct their staffs to work
with the various groups in California to resolve these issues. I
realize there are a lot of abuses going on, but I think this is
the one‘easy methcd that we can get at and resolve some of cur
differences that seem to be going on in the state.

I would reserve, if I can, Mr. Chairman, at the conclusion of
this hearing, some rebuttal time, if I may, because some of these
things are controversial items. They were controversial going in
and what I would like to do is ccome back and comment, if I can,
again later.

I do have some other topic matters that I will defer on,
those areas of relationship between HCD and local government, but
this is not the forum to resclve that because that will take
literally days of consultation con how to resclve those issues.

I think the key thing of all these issues is that the
mobilehome owner out there is becoming very frustrated with his

homestyle and his lifestyle. One of the reasons is that there



is really a lack of communication at all levels, every level, and
if we could start with some kind of a rallving point or forum,
whether it be the Senate Select Committee, HCD, or whatever else
it takes, I think we should sit down and resolve some of these
issues. That's why I think that your hearing today provides that
kinéd of forum.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you very much. Any questions from the
Senators? Senator Presley.

SENATOR PRESLEY: Mr. Chairman, in listening tc all of these

problems, it sounds like this committee might meet all over the
state instead of just in the north and south. ©One of the things
we plan to do in Riverside County is to hold some kind of
informal educational forum with HCD and the committee staff here
just to help everybody have a little better understanding. A

couple of pecints you brought up - the one about entrance by the

inspectors - it seems like that is kind of a "Catch 22"
situation. We're all nice, courteous people - I guess we are -
and if people come to the door, we usually say, "Come on in." We

even offer them a cup of coffee or something. Then theyv proceed
to inspect your place inside and out, I believe you said.

MR. WEHRMAN: That'es correct.

SENATOR PRESLEY: Then, on the cther hand, if you didn't
invite them in, and if you were uncooperative, you run the risk

of a very critical report, I suppcse.
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MR. WEHRMAN: You may get a critical report and,
unfortunately, if you are involved in selling your home, with
some of the park meanagements it would be very difficult to sell
that home because they would hold that over your head.

SENATOR PRESLEY: With regarcd to the hot water heater
appliances, I guess there must be some kind of safety factor
involved. 1I've heard of this issue before. Well, it is strange
that it ccsts more and the warranty is less.

MR. WEHRMAN: It's a long process, but the simple part of it
is that on these third-party inspections where they use
Underwriters Laboratory, etc., a mocbilehome hot water heater is
tested under conditions of a mobilehome environment, not those of
& conventional home. Therefore, Underwriters Laboratory éend
third parties will not certify this to be done. We are talking
about National Fire Protection Assn. regulations, American
National Standards Institute, and all these other various
technical national and technical publications that say in essence
you should do that. The guestion arises, however, particularly
here in California, that we don't think, even though that might
be @ fact, we don't believe that HCD can substantiate even one
single case of - take a hot water heater - that they can pinpoint
cne home even that has had a consequence as the result of

installing a conventional hot water heater.
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SENATOR PRESLEY: What if there was some kind of exemption in
the law that says if a homeowner wants to - just thinking out
loud - file an affidavit that this mobilehome is going to sit
here for five years or ten years, then they are authorized to get
a conventional hot water heater.

MR. WEHRMAN: Senator, in this letter I sent to HCD, HCD has
prepared a response to this in writing, I'm told. Knowing that
this meeting was going to be held, I asked HCD if they would not
commit that to writing at this point in order to crystallize
their opinion. It is my belief and understanding that in the
very, very near future those subject matters will be addressed
and that the Senate Select Committee will have, perhaps, John and
cthers as participants in this sc that we can resolve that and
see what the best approach would be. In the meantime, I'm not so
sure that we won't have to declare tc some degree a moratorium
out there, and I know that that is kind of contrary too because
if it is a viclation, it is a violaticn. But we are going to
have to resolve something to put a moratorium to stop this
because as these inspections go, the homeowners are having to
replace these units, particularly at resales time, because if
that report is made, then it goes down acain. That is a public
report.

I might just comment on the public report, one of the issues

that should be addressed to this and HCD might want to
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respond to this. It's my understanding that under any ncrmal
health and safety inspection done on any normal business
premises, that it is technically a confidential report.
Unfortunately, what HCD does it make this a public report. So,
Senator Presley, if I may, if I can use that as an example, if a
home was inspected and I happened to live next door and an
inspection report was made, or anybody else on the premises as
far as that goes, was to phone HCD and say they would like a
photocopy of the inspection report that was just made on my
neighbor next door, HCD will provide that. As a matter of fact,
free of charge. You would then know what kind of violation that
person has. It may be - I don't say it could be used - but
supposing that ten violations were written on that particular
home and under this existing non-conforming, which is really not
identified, maybe to HCD but it's not to others. Supposing the
homeowner decided not to do itemé 2, 4 and 6, either being too
expensive or what he thought wasn't necessary, and a new
homeowner went down to the park management and said in essence,
"T'm buyinc a person's home in here and those particular things
were not done." That person would be denied access until those
things were cured. Unfortunately, this tool, this public report
tool, is very dangerous as far as I'm concerned. It can be used
very openly, ané in some instances can be used very flagrantly.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Dan.
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SENATOR McCORQUODALE: Do vou think the law is clear enough

on who has the respcnsibility when there is a viclation, whether
it is the homeowner or the park cwner?

MR. WEFRMAN: Well, I'm sure BCD does, but I would say that
of the 280,000 mobilehome owners and the 45,000 RV owners sitting
in mobilehome parks, I doubt if more than half a dozen or a
handful of them know. That's the dilemma we're in right now.

SENATCE McCORQUODALE: There's a2 park in San Jose that has
threatened to be converted to a shopping center, and the city
council has always resisted that, but then discovered the homes
are over a gas line, which is a violation. It appears that the
owner is on a course to ultimately have - since the city council
won't allow him to close down the park - to allow HCD or some
state agency to close the park because it is in vicolation. It is
his contention that the homeowners should change those lines, and
that's his bacsic position. Then the homeowners, I quess they're
just not sure about the law to know who is responsible.

MR. WEHRMAN: Yes, as I expressed all the way throughout
here, and I want to make it very clear, that, unfortunately, the
way the statute is written, the way the law is written, almost
the full power is given tc HCD. They are indeed caught in a
crossfire and what I see happerning - at least potentially - is as
we go through all these inspections is that those very things can
happen. I did put in my acgenda a couple of items that I should

kind of clarify, at least briefly.



-27-

SENATOR CRAVEN: Could you do it briefly, please?

MR. WEHRMAN: Yes, just a wrap-up. One of those is what I
call surprise and unannounced inspections. There is a feeling
out there that mobilehome parks are deteriorating. For whatever
reasons, they are deteriorating: absentee landlords and investor
groups who reallv don't have an investment interest and not an
interest in long-term ownerships, etc. They are using HCD
instead of making any requirements out of their own corporations
cr their own management. They are making those kinds of demands
of HCD. These are enforcement agencies for health and safety,
and they are using that method. Many times, unfertunately, the
cure extends tc the homeowner. Not that it is not a violation,
but the homeowner doesn't know what in the world to expect out
there.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Rill, do you have a comment?

ASSEMBLYMAN BRRADLEY: I was curious about what kind of

citation is issued on a mobilehome? Some of them have a
fireplace - (inesudible) - what kind of citation?

MR. WEERMAN: Structural problems and accessory structures,
utility hookups. . .

MR. BRADLEY: Because of a change in codes?

MR, WEHPFMAN: No, not a2 change in codes. If it is an
appliance on the inside, unfortunately, the homeowner or most of

the people can't affordé tc gc out and hire a contractor at
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$50 an hour and sometimes they allow appliance dealers and others
who install some of these things in homes who most times don't
know how toc do that. They might install it incorrectly. Some
handyman may install some of them on occasion. A private
contractor might install it and not know the difference between a
mobilehcme connection and a conventional connection, and then,
unfortunately, the inspector will pick up most of these. Sc the
problem is ncot that we have these viclations out there, it is how
do we now get out of this dilemma of the thousands and thousands
that are sitting out there that the homeowner may be ultimately
cited for.

MR. BRADLEY: Is aluminum wiring still a problem?

MR. WEHRMAN: My perscnal opinion-is that it is, but we can't
resclve that one at this point in time.

MR. BRADLEY: So they don't cite a coach because it has
aluminum wiring? |

MR. WEHRMAN: No, definitely not.

SENATCR CRAVEN: Thank you very much.

MR. WEERMAN: Thank you.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I want to just digress a moment here to
recognize the presence of cne of the Councilpersons here in the
City of Escondido, The Honorable Doris Thurston, Councilwoman.

Doris, it is nice having you here with us today.



_29_

COUNCILWOMAN THURSTON: Thank you very much. It is nice to

be here today.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you very much. Ms Thurston is very
active in the mobilehome field here within the city and maintains
a very constant interest and tries her very, very best to resolve
so many of the issues you run into here at the local level. Next
we have Mr. Ed Evans of the Western Mobilehome Association. (No
immediate response. Mr. Norm McAdoo of WMA spoke from audience
stating that Mr. Evans couldn't make it but Mr. McAdoo would
speak in his place later in the agenda).

SENATOR CRAVEN: All right then, how about Darrel Klein?

DARREL KLEIN: Good morning, Senator Craven, Senators,

gentlemen and Mrs. Bailey. My name is Darrel Klein, and I reside
at 1537 Rancho Ramona Park in Ramona, California. Rancho Ramona
Park was recently an all-adult park until an additional section
of fifteen spaces was added as a family section of the park.
After moving in on August 10, 1985, I contacted a private
ccentractor about pouring a cement slab for a shed. We were
informed by the contractor, who has 30 vears experience in the
business, that we had a drainage problem. The contracter alsc
stated that he would not work in the park, put his work in the
park, because he did not want his name associated with the poor
workmanship which had already been done. He could not understand

how this new section passed inspection.
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The road running through the park is higher than all the
lots, approximately 3" to 4". My lot is the worst, where there
is a2 drop from the road anywhere from 11" to 27" in places.

There is no proper dreinage for water except for it to go under
the home. We have contacted numerous departments all the way
from state to local departments. During my efforts in calling
all these different departments, I have talked to San Diegc
Public Works, because I was informed that the problem lies in the
grading and that Public Works is responsible for this toc be done.
I was infecrmed by Mr. Dick Bunch of Public Works, after going to
see him in person, that there never was a gradinc permit filed.
Mr. Bunch checked back as far as three years and informed me that
there never had been a grading permit filed on the above-
mentioned section of land. Due to this fact, Mr. Bunch said that
Public Works is out of it and is not responsible for any wrong-
doing and that my problem lies with the County building
inspectors. |

T, therefore, contacted a Mr. Snow of the County building

'
inspectors, and after a number of times being told that the
problem would be looked into, and never anything done about it,
Mr. Snow informed me on October 15, 1985, that - and I quote -
"There is nothing he can do seeing how the property already had

passed inspection." I then asked Mr Snow for the name of the

inspector who passed the property, and he refused me this
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information. So, as vecu can see, Senator Craven, I have
seemingly come to one of twc alternatives. The last alternative,
of course, is to file a civil lawsuit with the District Attorney,
and my second to last alternative is to inform you, Senator
Craven, of the problem at Rancho Ramona Park.

Despite all that has taken place these past couple of months,
I still have faith in the system and that it still works for us
middlemen, or else I wouldn't be standinc here today. We need
vour assistance in helping us solve this problem that has stemmed
frecm nothing more than areed and wanting to keep costs down and
obtaining a profit faster. I'm referring to the companies that
are involved in preparing the lcts, road and drainage system of
Rancho Ramcna Park and the inspection cf the above-mentioned
section of land.

The new section of Ranchc Ramona is privately owned by
wW. E. Lade, and it is leased to Ramona Mobile Home Park, Ltd.,
and the spaces are rented on a monthly basis to myself and
presently ten others, many of whom are here today. Rancho Ramona
Park, Ltd., from whom we rent the land, admits that there is a
problem but that it is rot their fault but the fault of the
contractor who put the black-top road in the park because he
stole dirt from some cf the lots to complete his work. Rancho

Ramona Park, Ltd., plans on putting up retaining wells which, as
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I understand, but I only have hearsay on this, would be put one
foot in the ground, and they are going to dig drainage ditches
around our homes. Now I perscnally do not agree tc this as it
never was part of my contract in the purchasing of the home. T
also understand from what I found out, and it bothers me, that if
they go down that footage, it isn't going to do aryv good anyhow.
Now I've just heard thie from the pecple I've talked to in the
GSMOL organization. Alsc, what little lawn space I do have,
which is specifically for my children to play on, I really do not
want it taken away from them for drainage ditches around my home.

I am also concerned about the selling aspects of my home if
this happens, the cause and effect upon that if I should decide
to try to sell, but my main concern is that I'm going to have
problems down the road with moisture under my home if I agree to
Ramona Mobile Home Park's remedies. I have stated this to one
Mr. Jerry Bittner, who is the company's representative, and
requestsed that my home be moved off the lot it was put on, bring
in fill dirt and@ granite and prepare the lot as it should have
been before they put my home on it. But due to cbvious expense
reasons, they have refused me this primary solution and seem to
do just what they want despite the fact that I may still have

problems down the road with moisture settling under my home.
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I also must bring up another subject concerning the
guestionable sales practices cf the company from whom we bought
our mobilehome. We, as buyers, were manipulated and misled by
California Escrow into releasing our individual funds that were
held for us. We were told by MGA to sign a statement provided by
California Escrow that we were satisfied with the skirting,
awnings, porches, and steps and how they were set up. We, on an
individual basis, signed this paper before any of this work had
been done. We did this because MGA informed us that - and I
guote - "should tell the finance company that we are happy with
all these services or else California Escrow will nct release our
individual accounts, and, therefore, we could not move intc our
homes." Now, we were put in & position where we had given
notices - notices at our previous places - and because of this,
we as individuals signed this paperwork as the last paper
presented to us before closing escrow.

We realize that we are at fault for signing this paper before
the above-mentioned services were completed, and now we are at
the mercy cof the contractors who provided these cervices, and
have had very poor workmanship done on the sidings of our homes
and have had very unsatisfactory work dcne concerning these
services, some of which have nct been completed yet. It seems

apparent that cnce MGA gets the escrow funds released and get



their commission and pay the contractors who they hired to put up
the skirting, steps, awnings and pocrches, we, as buyers, become
secondary in consideration as far as cervices paid for. There
are many remeining lots that are still empty in Rancho Ramone
Park that are the main concern of MGA's sales perscnnel and the
contractors they hire. It is our misfortunate that we put our
trust in MCGA to have these services completed to our satis-
faction, and we really have nc recourse and we don't expect any
now because we know we were at fault in signing this piece of
paper before the services were done. But what we would like to
do is draw some attention so that doesn't happen again to future
buyers of mobilehomes.

So in summary, Senator Craven, I really feel that it is not
more rules, regulations and inspections that we as tenants of
mobilehome parks need right now because the present cones are
being bent and, obviously, are not being follcwed. What we, as
owners of mobilehomes and renters of park spaces, need is
enfcrcement of the present rules and regulations and inspectors
with 20/20 vision.

I héve enclcsed a packet with pictures. It has all the
information about the departments that I contacted. It has
letters that we have written to the two companies that I

mentioned. We are goincg tc have a meeting with them to discuss



this and get a fuller understanding because all we've had is
hearsay thus far. On this we are talking about myself and my
wife as a younger couple and a majority cf the other pecple who
have mocved into this new section, who are younger couples also.

We purchased a mobilehome because we couldn't afford a house,
and we are comfortable with our home. We like cur home. But we
are having some real difficulty with the lots and how they were
prepared. We are not the type of people, as a grcup, who want to
cause anybody any trouble, any one perscn or any cone company. We
just want what was quaranteed toc us in the contract, anc thus far
we haven't received it. One of our recourses was coming up here
and talkinc about it. So I appreciate your time in allowing me
to talk about this.

SENATCR CRAVEN: We appreciate your testimony. Dan, do you
have a question?

SENATOR,MCCORQUODALE: Well, that's just another area of the
previous picture of who is responsible for this? It seems to me
that when you read the code that the park owner is responsible
for the ground and the land and ensuring that it is not against
regulations. I have a similar situation in my district where the
responsibility is being put on the homeowner, and there they were
offered their 60-day notice that they should vacate the space
because the situation vioclated the state law. I guess your park

owner hasn't offered your movinag out at this pecint.
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MR. KLEIN: I have been offered that situation where they
wanted to buy me out, but I really do not want to sell. I mean I
just moved into the place. I can only speak for myself. I have
a newborn. I'm not in a positicn to mcve. I'm really happy with
where I'm living; that's why I moved into that area. Being
unfamiliar with some of the problems of mobilehome living, I did
not stop to realize the serious problem of park preparation until
it was too late.

SENATOR McCCRQUODALE: Maybe HCD, when they come up here, can
respond to this.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Let me ask you, Mr. Klein, are you still
engaged in any dialogue with the County of San Diego?

MR. KLEIN: ©No, I'm not. The last time I talked to them was
on October 15th.

SENATOR CRAVEN: When you contacted them, did you ever speak
to your Supervisor, a County Supervisor? Did you do that?

MR. KLEIN: Not that I know of. The direction that I took
was that I started from Sacramento. I called up there first and
they directed me to go lcocal, and I have directed all my
attention to the local people. . .

SENATOR CRAVEN: The only reason I mention that is sometimes
it is very, very easy for the Department to kind of give you the
fast shuffle, but when thev hear from one cf the elected

officials of county covernment, they may take a bit more interest
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in responding tc you. I think vou have a very real and
legitimate problem which deserves some better treatment, in my
judagment, than you have received thus far. If there is anything
that we can do to assist you, we will. But it is basically =a
local issue. 1Is George Bailey your Supervisor?

MR. KLEIN: Yes, he is.

SENATOR CRAVEN: We may get in touch with George for you to
see what we can find out.

MR. KLEIN: Well, I'm new at this sc I don't really know how
to approach it so I appreciate any information you can provide
me.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Ry the time you finish ycu're going to be an
0ld hand. Thank vou, Darrel.

MP. KLEIN: Thank you very much.

SENATOR CRAVEN: VYou're entirely welcome. I would like to
welcome another one of our colleagues just arriving, and sitting
here with us now is Assemblywoman Sunny Mojonnier, who represents
basically the coastal area. 2As she says, and so many of us say,
it is "Sunny" along the coast. She represents - do you come back
into Escondido at all, Sunny?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN MOJONNIER: (inaudible)...the uninccrporated

area.
SENATOR CRAVEN: Yes, the unincorporated area. Very good.
She stays close to the water areas obviously. It's nice having

you here with us. Now let's see, we have Roy Smart and/cr Chris

Ancerson from HCD.
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ROY SMAPRT: Good morning, Senator and fellow committee
members. My name is Roy Smart. I'm with the Department of
Housing and Community Develcopment and currently responsible for
our inspection efforts of mobilehome parks throughout the state.
I have some nctes prepared, but I would like, first of all, to
comment that I believe Len Wehrman has made an important point.
He has re-emphasized the line of communications that you are
trying to establish with your constituency in mobilehome parks,
eand Len is correct in saying that our Department used to be more
on call with mobilehome park residents, park operators and also
special occupancy park owners. I see representatives cf all
three segments cf that industry here today. I feel we could
resolve a number of the prcblems if they would extend an
invitation to us to attend their meetings. We're quite
recponsive tc those types of invitations.

Our Department has approximately 3300 of the 5800 mobilehome
parks statewide under our jurisdiction. We have reassumed
approximately 1500 mobilehome parks since 1979. It has impacted
our workload tremendously during that five-year period of time.
During that time period also we were facing what was called a
downside swing because we were going through recduction, and the
number of mobilehomes being manufactured were seeing an upswing
in the production of mobilehomes, and we have had to transfer

field staff. But our routine activities in mcbilehome parks
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concerning mobilehomes, commercial coaches and recreational
vehicles were also delayed. Recognizing that we do have a
shortage, we have lost people within the procgram, we have asked
for additional staff, primarily to work in the mobilehcme park
program.

One of the things mentioned this morning was that the
Department does make unannounced inspections. We, traditionally,
have made maintenance inspections or responded to complaint
inspections within the parks in an unannounced fashion. In the
park that we have reassumed from cities and counties, we have
offered to meet with the park managers and the residents to
explain what they could expect in terms of our inspections. We
deal with mobilehome installations. We deal with the
corstruction of parks or additions to parks. We deal with the
installation of accessory structures, awnings, storage cabinets,
decks, and those things that are fhe amenities of the
mobilehomes. And we do make routine maintenance inspections
within those parks, looking for health and safety deficiencies.

It was menticned that we would make an inspecticn on the sale
of a mobilehome that it be permitted to remain in the mobilehome
park. The interesting thing abkout that type inspection is that
the provisione of the Civil Code that we're normally not involved
with do limit the authority of our inspection tc unsafe items.
We're dealing with not routine maintenance items. We're nct
dealing with non-conforming items, but we are dealing with unsafe

conditions, and the criteria for thet is very clearly spelled
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out: unsafe electrical, unsafe plumbing installations or unsafe
structural installations such as leaky roofs, the obvious things
like broken windows, things of that nature. I am just giving you
an overview of what our responsibilities are - and I will make
myself available to the committee members for any guestions you
might have.

SENATOR McCORQUOCDALE: Mr. Chairman?

SENATOE CRAVEN: Yes, Dan, go ahead.

SENATCR McCORQUODALE: Why make unannounced visits? What
would be the rationale for making unannounced visite?

MR. SMART: 1It's a traditional thing. Certainly, if we are
geing to make an inspection con a mobilehome, for example, if we
have a ccmplaint, and we are checking that complaint from a
mobilehome cwner, then we would go intc the mobilehome park. We
would annocunce ourselves to the mcobilehome park operatcr, but we
would go in and survey the area. One of the common things that
we deal with are the depressions in the street where we have
water puddling and all. We would just go intoc the park and let
ourselves be known without having made arrangements for such
inspection.

SENATOR McCORQUODALE: Human nature being what it is -
though - regarding the depressions in the street, T know that
it's going to get caught at some point, vou know. Chances are
that I'm going to wait, and if you announce to me that you are

coming and allow me to take care of this, then when you come,
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Then you don't have to come back again to check and see if it has
been done. But if you come in and make an unannounced visit,
then it certeinly seems to me all the reasonably insignificant
items that you would pick up that ought to be picked up and ought
to be taken care of, then you have to go back a second time to
check and see if they were done. It seems to me it would be a
real value in saying vou were coming and if nothing else, doing
it the other way - announcing vou were coming in July to take a
look at the park. Then maybe you won't show up until September
or so, but it would seem to me that the unannounced visits don't
serve any purpose as there is no real raticnale for them.

MR. SMART: All right. I agree with that, sir, and I think
probably what I shculd do is talk to Mr. Wehrman and see what his
particular concerns are. Is he referring to an unanncunced visit
to a residence within a mobilehome park or unannounced visit to
the park. . .

SENATCR McCORQUCDALE: . .unannounced visit like to a nursing
home, then you are able to tell whether it is an ongoing thing cr
whether they keep things in good shape. You have a different
licensing responsibility there than you do with a mobilehome. It
would seem like no matter what is wrong with the park, if the
greatest safety hazard in the world is there, the persen has a
chance to do something about it. You're not going to walk right

in and tell everybody they have tc move out of the park that day



and so it would seem that there is very little purpose served in
the unannounced visit. It's much better to let people know you
are coming, and they take cere of all the details. Mavbe
everything's fine when you get there.

MR. SMART: We certainly will reexamine that policy. Thank

SENATOR PRESLEY: John, you have a guestion?

JOHN TENNYSON: Yes. Mr. Smart, regarding unannouncec

inspections, I assume you are talking abcut park inspections, nct
mobilehome resales? When it is requested by the homeocwner on e
resale, then it is not an unanncunced surprise - that type of
situation, is it? They know what the inspector is there for.

MR. SMART: I appreciate your clarifying because we do make
those on ar appointment basis.

MR. TENNYSON: Are the majority of complaints from parks on
the mobilehomes themselves on a éomplaint basis?

MR. SMART: The majority of complaints that we receive and
process are those filed by the residents against the park, some
form of the parkv0peration. Depression in the streets is one of
the most common.

MR. TENNYSON: Your unannounced inspections are of the park
rather than of the mcbilehomes themselves, in your opinion?

MR. SMART: Yes, sir. That is correct, ves.

SENATOF PRESLEY: Mr. Bradley.

ASSEMBLYMAN BILL BRRADLEY: How is your Department funded?

The reason I ask is I was wonderinag why local government is not

doing these inspections?
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MR. SMART: We receive our funding through the fees. We have
what is called the Mobilehome Park Revolving Fund and our source
of revenue comes through a permit to operate that is issued
annually for each mobilehome park. We also receive fees for
construction inspection.

MR. BRADLEY: At that point, why is local government dcing
the every day inspection of stick housing?

MR. SMART: Well, it's optional, sir. Under the provisions
of the law, any local government may elect to enforce the
Mobilehome Farks Act.

MR. BRADLEY: They don't have access tc that same fee?

MR. SMART: Yes, they do. Theyv get the annual permit to
operate fee, and they also get the construction permit fee.

MR. BRADLEY: Why did 1500 of them turn this back to ycur
Department?

MR. SMART: There is no single answer to that, but,
generally, what I hear is that they feel the amount of work

involved is not supported by the revenue generated.

4

MR. BRADLEY: Does your Department have a surplus revenue?
have found that some departments have plenty of money, but
because of the Governor's freeze on hiring, he is ncot utilizing
the funds that are available, like the Contractors' Licensce
Rcard, which has a €10 millicn surplus and yvet we can't seem to
get any action from the staff. Is that true in your Department?

Do you have excess funds that are not being utilized?



MR. SMART: Well, I don't have exact figures, but I would say
that our request for the five additional positions, field
positions, is within the monies we now have available. So we do
have revenues available tc put on the additional staff.

SENATOR PRESLEY: What happens - out of curiosity - and if
what Mr. Bradley is saying is true, where the departments have
excess money that is paid into those departments by, in this
case, a homeowner in a park, if it isn't used, what happens to
it?

MR. SMART: We are permitted tc carry a one-year surplus.
When we reach that pcint, we have to reduce the fees to. . .

SENATCR PRESLEY:. . .it doesn't end up in the General Fund?

ME. SMART: No, sir.

SENATOR PRESLEY: It is used ultimately to pay back to the
people who paid it?

MR. SMART: That's the intent, sir.

SENATOR PRESLEY: Ms. Mojonnier.

ASSEMRLYWOMAN MOJONNIER: I would say - you said you would
get a request from a mobilehome owner, and you do, then find a
violation, yvou cite the park owner? Is that correct?

MR. SMAPT: Well, I would be interested in what type of
inspection you are talking about. Is this an inspection of a
mobilehome or cne of the parks?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN MOJCNNIER: I understood most cf your
complaints come from mcbilehome owners in regard to things such

as roadways there in the park.

MR. SMART: OK.
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN MCJONNIER: Then, in that case, do you then
cite the owner of the mobilehome park, or what kind of follow-up
do you do?

MR. SMART: OK. I should clarify at this point that under
any circumstances we issue orders to the person responsible. If
we are talking about a roadway, for example, that's part of the
park facilities so we would issue the order to the mobilehome
park owner in that case. If we were talking about an awninc, for
example, that had brcken columns and was in dancer of being blown
away or falling, in that case we would issue the order to the
mobilehome owner because they own that structure and are
responsible for it. The law does provide that the perscn
responsible is the recipient of any of our orders. Ultimately,
however, if it is a nuisance and is extremely unsafe, then we do
hold the mobilehome park operator responsible for correction of
that. So we do cite both the mobilehome owner and the park
owner. An example of that would ke a broken gas ccnnector,
socmething that is leaking. We would want immedizte action on
that, so we notify both the mobilehome owner and the mobilehome
park owner that it is a very unsafe condition. We want someone
to do something about it immediately. This is defined as a
nuisance.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN MOJONNIER: 2And you follow up on that?

MR. SMART: Yes, mam.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you very much. Thank yvcu, sir.

SENATOE McCCRQUODALE: Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Yes, Dan.
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SENATCR McCORQUODALE: What about the gentleman who
corplained about the depression under his mobilehome? What would
you do about something like that?

MR. SMART: If we were the enforcement agency, one of our
people would investigate that and would follow throcugh. It would
be very difficult for me to evaluate his situation without having
seen it. T would suggest that we cculd assist the committee by
dealing with the County of San Diego. We're acquainted with
their enforcement department. The man cbviously has a problem.
We've dealt with this situation many times.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Very good. Mr. Tennyson has & question.

MR. TENNYSON: That's the point I was gcing to ask you - if I
could talk to you about that prcblem after the hearing and see if
you would look intc for us?

MR. SMART: Be glad to do so, sir.

SENATCE CRAVEN: Next is Mr. Norm McAdoo of the Western
Mcbilehome Asscciation.

MR. NORM McADOC: Good morning, Senatcrs and members cf the

committee. I wasn't sure of the subject matter so I don't have
anything prepared. 1I'll just be impromptu.

SENATOR CRAVEN: You're very good at speaking
extemporanecusly, Norm.

MR. McADOO: As I listened to this about the inspections, I

have perscnally called the state Department for three inspections



cf homes on resale. I called, primarily, because I was concerned
about what was going to happen with a new buyer who bought that
home because I was well aware that the woman who had been living
there in excess of twenty years had an oven that ccntinually
exploded because it didn't have a pilot that worked. 1In none of
those inspections was anything found wrong with those homes sc,
apparently, Mr. Wehrman has a different inspector than I had.
Actually, I was trying to get homes out of there. I really
was. That's the reason I called for the inspection. When the
"l7-year old rule" was redone about three years ago, I think, it
wasn't redone correctly. Many people ere being disserved by the
present legislative enactment that is there. There comes a time
wher things dec, in fact, wear out. They really do. And I'm
talking about these old homes that are 20 and 25 years old that
were not built to any construction standards, none at all. They
had electricity and plumbing and over a pericd of time those
things have worn out also. I have no problem with someone living
there wanting to sell that home to get money to go to a
retiremert home. I do have a problem of the heirs coming in when
everybody who lived there is deceased and making demands for
unrealistic values for that hcme. I have personally paid $12,000C
t+o $14,000 for homes to get them out cf my park and junked. I
got $2500 out of it because I did not want to allow that park to

deteriorate.



And when we have the present statutes on the book that we
have, that is exactly what is happening. The people who are
getting hurt - really - are the people who are buying those
homes. I had one the other day, people paid £20,000 for the
home, junked it and put a new home on it. It didn't cost me, but
it sure cost that new buyer. He wanted to live in that park. He
didn't want to live in that o©ld home. Now I'm nct in any way
saying that when homes are 17 years old or 20 years cld to junk
them. I'm saying that we need tc take a hard look at that rule
and make it so it works for everybody. It just doesn't work now,
and that's why vou are getting - you know, people come up for a
lot of rule violations so they get rent control.

They speak of rule violations, but they are really talking
about rent control. We come up with a lot of inspections because
we are trying to correct a bad situation and it's the only handle
we have to cget onto it. There is a reason for these stoves - not
the stoves, but the furnaces and the water heaters. With the
ability of designing better homes, they now leak air so they are
safe. Eut the o0ld homes had gaskets around the docrs,
interlocking windows and the special feature of a mobilehome
furnace or a water heater is that it has an outside source of
combustion air and eliminates the draft deburner. What was
happening with those appliances that were designed for those old

homes was that if the furnace or water heater came on in the



middle of the night, it exhausted the oxygen out of the air. It
made a negative pressure in the mobile, and the products of the
combustion instead of going out through the atmosphere, spilled
through the draft deburner back into the home and killed people
at night. So that is why and, again, it is an old problem. Ve
don't have those problems with today's homes. But those old
metal homes with the gasket doors and tight windows were killing
people because of the water heaters and the furnaces doing that.
They had a hard time finding it because when they came and opened
the door, the pressure equalized. The plumbing industry worked
on that for several years before what we found out was really
killing the people in the middle of the night. That's what it
was and that's the reason for those particular appliances.

I think another problem that we have with inspections, not so
much at the county level - boy, this is hard to say and not make
scmebody mad. . . |

SENATOR CRAVEN: Don't let that worry you. It never has in
the past. (laughter).

IR. McADOO: Well, some of the city inspectors aren't too
bright about what is going on in mobilehome parks, and it's not
their fault. They haven't been taught. Senator Presley's people
in the County cof Riverside know what is going on because it is a

big enouch government function and they have enough parks that
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thcse people know what is happening, but there are some cities
that I have parks in where the guy can hardly find his way
through the park and he doesn't know the ordinances; he doesn't
know the sta£utes. He's a nice guy and he's smart; he can
inspect sticks and stones and conventional structures because he
was taught hew to do that. In the late 1950'a or perhaps early
1960's the Departmenf of Housing and our trade association held
seminars throuchout this state instructing local enforcement
officials about Title 25, and it made a vast improvement in our
inspection performance for a number of years. PBut I think those
guys have all retired and gone. Now we have a new bunch who
haven't been taught properly, so maybe that would be something
you could do - appropriate some funds to give these guys, and
have them teach those local inspectors who need to be taught, and
they know who they are.

There's a reason some counties - and Orange County did the
code for years - but so many cities developed there that the
county itself only had a dozen parks left in the whole county
under county jurisdiction, so they gave it back to the state. It
wasn't economically feasible for them to do it any more. My
biggest suggestion, though, is that we sit on a subcommittee, a
workshop, or something to solve the old home problem - they do

wear out. For the peocple who buy them, No. 1, they are not
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with us as always.

SENATOR PRESLEY: I have one question. About what age are
you talking about?

MR. McADOO: I'm talking about 20 years; I'm talking about 10
wides primarily.

SENATCR PRESLEY: 20 years or older?

MR. McADOO: Or older, yes. You see, 10 wides didn't arrive
until about 1954 or 1955. Prior to that it was 8 wides. We
still have cld 8 wides. I have one of them sitting around, and
that's just fine as long as that lady is there. And she's still
walking pretty brisk; she'll be there another ten years. But I
can rid of it when she is gone Like I say, if the people are
living there and they want to sell it and get the money, that's
fine, but I think it's a real bad thing that when they die, kids
come into the park. They haven't been there, you knqw, and they
are just out for the buck and care nothing about anything else.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Bill, you have a gquestion?

MR. BRADLEY: You say these coaches aren't usable. They were
built in acceordance with HUD standards even back in the 50's,
weren't they?

MR. McADOO: No, they weren't.

MR. BRADLEY: You're saying there were no standards then?
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MR. McADOC: In 1958 the State of California adopted
electrical, plumbing. . .

MR. BRADLEY: . .There were no structural standards. . .

MR. McADOCO: That's correct. Those three items had to work
but the walls didn't have to stand, the roof didn't have to
stand. The first structural recuirements were adopted in the
State of California in 1971, and those requirements were then
largely adcpted by the federal government in 19876.

MR. BRADLEY: (inaudible). . .You could replace a heater, but
what you are telling me is that in spite of that structure. . .

MR. McADOO: . . .no, I didn't say they were unsafe. I said
it was not built to a code. I é&id not say theyv were unsafe
althocuch some of them may not be safe. You kncw, the other thing
that has happened in these homes - and I could show you some of
them - is that through the years they have cut the whole side out
of that home. They left the whole thing open. Ncw there is no
structural integrity left in that home. Maybe they put a header
acrcss and maybe they didn't, but it sure wasn't engineered.
That's it. Thank you.

SENATOR CEAVEN: I knew vou could extemporize very well.

He's never disappointed me yet. Thank you, Norm. Sophie, are
vou ready? This is Sophie Howard, who is with GSMOL.

SOPHIE HOWARD: Yes, and I represent San Diego and Imperial

Counties. I was kind of taken back by Mr. McAdoc on the age of
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a home. I can't understand this. I was brought up in a home
that is still standing, and I am now 68 years old and no one has
said you have to condemn that home. There's nothing wrong with
it. O©f course, this is not what we're talking about today, but
this suddenly struck me. Why, because it is a mobilehcme, is
there a different criteria? I don't understand that.

Now, problems, inspecticns. Yes, we are having problems. We
have problems where septic tanks overflow, arnd when you go into
the park, the odor is terrific. 1Inspectors are supposed tc have
come out, and when I have asked about the water supply, we have
been told, "well, they didn't come ocut here to inspect the water
supply." There is another park - and you now have a letter on
that from cne of the residents up in that park - where the septic
tank, the sewer, is overflowing, the person has gotten so sick
they have now put 2 notice they are going to move their home out
of that park. That park is filtﬁy. I can't understand how the
inspectors allow the spaces tc be filled in there. It is beyond
my understanding. There is another park where you own your own
space. These people are waiting for the inspectecr to show up so
their homes won't be tied up and they can move in. Now they have
waited so long they have broker the law and moved inside and are
still waiting for an inspection. The one that you just heard
about - I have received calls from up there and I have advised

them what to do. Friday, I tock the time to sit down and find
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out myself the routines you have to go through. This is Tuesday,
and I'm still waiting for the illegal grading inspector to call
me, and this was Friday when I was told that the person was still
in the building and they will call you back.

There is something wrong when HCD has told us that when ycu
have a sewer problem, they run. We don't walk; we run to correct
this. I don't know where HCD is now because they are not
runninc. I don't think they are even crawling. For the life of
me, I cannot figure out why inspectors shculd be so late in
coming around. Now it never used to be this wav. I know that my
home was put on a space in 1973; the inspector was there; it was
all tied in, and I could move in. Tocday people are asking for
inspections, and they are moving in and they haven't been given
the clearance to do so but they are. What is happening on
inspections is something I cannct understand. We keep getting
Proposition 13 thrown at us for the lack of inspectors. I don't
think that's so. Somegody is not goinc out there and taking care
of what is happening in the field today.

SENATOR PRESLEY: Can we make a distinction here? I
understcod earlier that in some locations the county does the
inspections, and you are from Imperial County?

MS. HOWARD: I'm from San Diegc and Imperial. I represent

the mobilehome owners in both counties.



SENATOR PRESLEY: Apparently here in San Diego County, I
cuess the county does it. How about Imperial?

MS. HOWARD: No, well, let's back this up. I have had people
call me regarding inspections on homes for resale sc they try to
find ocut where to start. Finally, they call the city. The city
inspector says it is not our job; it's the county's job. The
county says it is not our job; it belongs to the state
organization. The state has been called and they say it is back
at the city level. This is the kind of runarcund we have been
getting now. The inspection is not happening.

SENATOR PRESLEY: Your answer, then, is that you don't know
who is responesible, right?

¥S. HOWARD: Not any more. This is what happered to me
Friday when I tried to make the call to correct what is going on
in Ramona.

SENATOR PRESLEY: If it ie the state, then I guess it gets
back to whether or not they are authorized to hire addifional
inspectors becuse according to Mr. Smart's remarks, the revenue
is there. So you want to determine if it is the state. It
sounéds like something we might be able to work on. If it is the
city or county, why. . .

SENATOR CRAVEN: . . .this is one of those things that we
 should try to work toward and that is get all monies back to the

local level where I think the inspections could be expedited.
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You mentioned Proposition 13. That's a rejoinder that we hear
coften. Whenever something agoes wrong, they say Prop. 13. . .

MS. BOWARD: . . .I realize that.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I do think the county is short of funds, and
they do defer a great deal of their inspection process. I have a
note here from Ms. Mojconnier's administrative assistant saying
that he, through Sunny's office, had discussions with George
Bailey's staff - that the Supervisor - and the County Health
Department. The county gets complaints about infrequent
inspections, but can't afford to doc more with the revenue they
get under current law, and I'm sure that that is a very correct
statement. So, maybe, we, as Senator Presley suggested, and as
Mr. Smart said there is money, but we haven't utilized that money
by hiring more inspectors. We have that same thing happen in
other areas, and I think we can certainly check into that and see
what we can do to shake it up, aﬁd perhaps get some of that loose
and put it where it belongs.

MS. HOWARD: I think what is happening, Senator, is that when
these people call for assistance - just as I did Friday - I
started out Friday morning and went from one department to
another; I went on down the line because it's not my department.
I stopped at 11:45 AM at the "Illegal Grading", and I was advised
then that the person was in the building but would call me back.

‘Here it is Tuesday. The point is that this is not conly happening
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tc me, but it happerns to the pecple out in the field. This is
what hurts.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Yes. Ms. Mojonnier has a cuestion.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN MOJONNIER: Ms. Howard, did you cell the Health
Department in regard tc the overflowing septic tank?

MS. HOWAKD: Yes, we called everybody.

MS. MOJONNIER: You did call. . .

MS. HOWARD: . . .we called them all. The Health Department
will come out there and say, "Yes, there is a septic tank thet is
leaking." But that's it and they cite the owner. Now, we &asked
one cther thing: what about the water? They told us they didn't
come out there to check the water. So it seems that even though
you and I may look at it and say, "It does loock like the water
supply; why aren't vou checking it?" Uh-uh; they have to be
told. There's something wrong somewhere.

MS. MOJONNIER: It's called bureaucracy.

MS. HOWARD: That's true. In this particular park it was a
gentleman who was making the complaints to me, and we were
following up. The owner of the park bought him out so that he
would shut up. Now there are other people moving in who dc not
know about the problem. You can smell it, but they are unaware
of what is geing cn. So somewhere along the line we're talking
about the health problem. This is a family park that I'm

speaking about. Now you mean tc tell me you want your children
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running around in that kind of a condition? You can smell it.
And yet the inspectors did not dc something, even close it down
until it was corrected. Even to the wiring in the boxes - you'll
have to forgive me, I'm not that up on mechanical thincs. The
electrical boves are snapping and cracking and catching on fire,
and you mean the inspectors don't see that? This is what I don't
understand. When they go out and look and inspect, what do they
really go out and look at and inspect? These are the things that
are wrong.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Sophie, I was just wondering. Have you
talked to Mr. Smert at all?

MS. HOWARD: No, I haven't.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Roy, that's in your purview, is it not?

MR. SMART: I don't believe it is, Senator. I believe San
Diego County (inaudible as speaking from audience). .
unincorporated. . .Imperial County also.

SENATOR CRRVEN: Sophie, are you referring to & park in. . .

MS. HOWARD: . . .they are all over - in the county and in
the city - in the area of San Diego and Imperial Cocunties. I
mean I represent the two counties, but this involves city and
county people as well.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I see.

MR. SMART: (inaudible from audience).

SENATOR CRAVEN: Where is that, Sophie?



MS. HOWARD: Gunahay. It's way out in east county.

SENATOR CRZVEN: What's the name of the place?

MS. HOWARRD: If I'm spelling it right, sir, it's
G-U-N-A-H-A-Y. It's a little town off the side of cld Hwy. 80.

SENATOR CRAVEN: You know, I used to represent that area, and
I never heard of it. No wonder the inspectors can't locate it.
(laughter).

MS. HOWARD: They had even allowed new construction for
mobilehomes to come in. This ig what alarms me when they can't
take care of whet is already there. BAnd the septic tanks are
overflowing in that area.

SENATOR CRAVEN: It isn't Guatay, is it

")

MS. HOWARD: No, no.

SENATOR CRAVEN: It's spelled G-U-A-T-A-Y and pronounced
"What-Tie."

MS. HOWARD: Is that what it is? But, actually, this is what
I mean. Even at the other end of the spectrum here about the
sewers running over, she has given you a letter on that, hcping
that something will be done. . .

SENATOR CRAVEN: . .  .yes, Sophie, it will. . .
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MS. HOWAEKD: . . .she has given it to the Supervisor as well.
And this is sad. OK?

SENATOR CRAVEN: Yes, Scphie. It's nice seeing you again.
Thank you very much. Now, we have finished those scheduled to
appear. I'd like now to get toc those others of you who may have
something to tell us about. I particularly want toc hear from Don
Olmsted, who brought tc my attention a problem created by
legislatior - my legislation. Don, would you cffer some comment
on that? Just lay it out as you see the problem.

DON OLMETED: Thanks. I'm Don Olmsted of Vista. I became

very disturbed when the value cf land (inaudible). . .tried to
research all the protection that mobilehome people might have in
those kinds of things and I thought I had the problem solved
because the Subdivisicon Map Act requires that where anybody
applies for a change of use of these properties that it is pretty
well prescribed. Suddenly the park owners came forward - and I
quote from the legal report from the legal staff at HCD - a
fraudulent proposition that they were going "no use" - and it's
pretty obvious they weren't going "nc use." They issued a
fraudulent claim they were going "no use" to get rid oi the
people, and they don't like the wording, "official chance of
use."

Now it's my perception that SBE 316 came forward and tried to

address that kind of problem. 2nd I've been trying to negotiate

with certain city governments, trying to get them to come forward
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with certain guidelines for both the land owners and the
hcmeowners so there is not 211 this public debate and a lot of
anguish in this situation. I have been successful in some cases
in negotiating situations whereby the park owners would recognize
what mitigation means. Tc me, paying the first and last months'
rent, security deposits and hookups, and moving somebody's
personal belongings to an apartment defies the actual term
mitigation, and, as we all know, there aren't any relocation
places for people.

In talking statistically, we might find an odd one here or
there, but there are no relocation places for mobilehomes in the
State of California. So when a park closes under those kinds of
conditions tc require that only the relocation costs mitigate the
circumstances, I think is drastically wrong. I would just like
to tell you a little story about a neighbor of mine whose wife
died and he was gquite elderly. He decided he hacd toc move to be
near his children, and he put his home up for sale previous to
the issue where we repezled the l17-year bill, where the park
owners had an opportunity to say, "Get out of the park upon
resale." He had a qualified buyer for $16,000. The park owner
said, "No, get it out of here." The hichest price he could get,
desperately tryving, was $2,600.

Soc the loss of your home under these conditions is in the

thousands of dollars. ©Now I wouldn't expect any kind of



legislation to come forward and prescribe exactly how this is
done, but I've been trying to work with local cities and
communities - for instance, Sophie Howard and myself have been
working very diligently trying to get help for some parks that
are under threat right now.

I've worked in the City of Lomita and in Vista. We've got
certain proscriptions there that can help these situations. But
with SB 316, where they are only allowing the cost of relocation,
the hotshot lawyerskcome forward saying, "OK, I have a park three
blocks over here and it will cost $3,000. Here's your $3,00C;
now get out and junk your home." And I really think there should
be some kind of redress in the future so that these dictates can
either be decided con the local level or there will be some kind
of guidelines for both the land owners and the homecwners when
these conditions come forward.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Is what you are saying, in essence, the fact
that the park owner mitigates - that is, in effect, to pay - for
thcse relocation costs is nct sufficient by virtue of the fact
that in many instances there is no land available to which that
coach may be moved? Is that correct?

fR. OLMSTED: That's correct. So they lose the entire value
of their home.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Don, what do you offer as an alternative to

that?
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MR. OLMSTED: I woculd suggest that - I think the state's
position is right. They don't prescribe what mitigation is, and
I think every local jurisdictional group has different problems
relating to this. Some of them will have the ability to develop
relocation centers for these people. I think that some park
owners are recogrnizing that they are treating the problem and
they will assume the fiscal impact upon those homeowners and
proceed to redevelop their property. But I would like the kind
of conditions so that it is not restricted. This restricts it to
just relocation costs, which completely eliminates the loss of
their home.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Dan?

SENATCR McCORQUODALE: But I don't see that you are any worse
off. Some of the people in my area think this is a very good
piece of legislation. It at least calls attention to the
problem. Before that there was nothing other than what was a
general plan change which happened five years ago when no one was
paying any attention - just maybe & zoning change a year ago when
no orne was paving much attention. 2And now the notice says the
property is for sale and is going to be reconverted to some other
use. At this point the city council is not terribly worried
because they know that the change is gcing to take place before
the next election so you really don't have much chance to have an

impact on it. This reguires all that up front earlier and at a



_64_

time when ycu still have a chance to - you know, 200 to 400
people, especially in a town like Vista, ought to be able to have
some impact on the city council.

MR. OLMSTED: I would agree with you if they were asking for
ar official chenge. SB 316 goes past that point because they had
a whole rash of them in Mono County, and I'm sure - whether it's
available to you or not - that all counties developed an
ordinance with park owners coming forward saying, "We're going no
use; we're just goinc toc close the park; we're not asking for an
official change of use." So therefore they are exempt from the
qualifications of the Subdivision Map Act, which require the
filing of a report and mitigate the circumstances.

I've got my particular city of Vista to come forward and say,
"No use is a change of use." I think it very obviously is, and I
think the proscripticns of 316 are good, and it's not a problem
if the park owner goes bankrupt. But if he isn't going bankrupt,
I think he has the same responsibility to mitigate the
circumstances if he is asking for an official change of use for
that property. So, therefecre, if the actual proscriptions of the
Subdivision Map Act, where they were asking for a change of use
for the park were to come forward, whenever they closed the park,
that would sclve the problem for us.

SENATOR McCCRQUCDALE: This bill isn't law yet, is it?
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SENATOR CRAVEN: January 1, 1986.

MR. TENNYSON: It becomes effective Jenuary 1, 1986, and I
might point out that the Subdivisicon Map Act is a separate
situation from Sec. 65000 of the Government Code that you are
talking about. We're talking about situetions other then the
Subdivision Map Act proceedings that don't involve the division
of a land into five or more parcels.

The reason that a 1lid was put on mitigaticn, as far as
allowing local government to dc whatever they want, is & give and
take situation. Your advocate, Mr. Priest, agreed to it in three
or four sessions of bargaining on this issue, becauce there was
opposition to this bill from the realtors, park owners and other
groups, and in order to be able to cget something for "no use" and
some of the things that Senator McCorcuodale is talking about, we
had to, of course, give something alsoc. There was a total
agreement on that. It was part of the cive and take.

MR. OLMSTED: I understand those legislative processes. I'm
just trying to address the issue of the loss of the value of
these people's homes which I think is considerable. We're not
talking about a few hundred dcllars; we're talking about
thousands of dollars, and it completely eliminates any protection
for the homeowners - the value of their homes - this condition -

because I happen tc be working right now with the City of Lomita,
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not with the city, but defendinag some people, and I convinced
their counsel that they should draw their guidelines and they
were about ready to come forward and recognize the fact that an
independent appraised price, cost of severance allowance, or
relocation costs. If it was possible to relocate, then when an
attorney brings up this, it eliminates their possibility to do
that because they can say, "Well, I have a park three blocks over
here and it will cost me $2,000 to move them over there and
that's all you can get; get out!"

Thank you very much.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you, Don. Next, Mr. Henry Wright.

(speaking from audience and inaudible).

SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, why don't you come down and you don't
have tc have anything formally prepared. You just wing it, and
it will be fine. State your name, please.

MR. HENRY WRIGET: Henry Wright. I live in Thousand Palms in

Senator Presley's district. I live in a mobilehome park where
you own your own lot. I wculd like to know when does my
mobilehome become a manufactured home, and the minute I put it on
the block by myself, where does the HCD inspection stop? Where
is the county building inspection? Can the county supersede
ECD's ruling and vice versa?

SENATOR CRAVEN: Do you want to answer that, John?
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MR. TENNYSON: Well, it's my understanding that if you are
placed on a permanent foundation, you become subject to uniform
building code requirements. If it is not on a permanent
foundation, then you are still subject to state requirements.

MR. WRIGHT: Well, that's another thing.

MR. TENNYSON: I beg your pardon?

ME. WRIGHT: What constitutes a permanent foundation? I am
apparently bored into the ground - on pilings like the others. .

MR. TENNYSON: Is this permanently affixed?

MR. WRIGHT: Nc.

MR. TENNYSON: These pilings?

MR. WRIGHT: No, instead of skirting, I have a brick wall and
it's dirt after that. I would call that a permanent foundation.

MR. TENNYSON: Well, it's on pilings or. . .

MR. WRIGHT: . . .installation. . .

MR. TENNYSON: . . .not bolted down, then it's not on a
permenent foundation.

MR. WRIGHT: No. Sc it's not considered a permanent
foundation?

MR. TENNYSON: Well, I'm nct a technical expert. DMaybe Mr.
Smart or Mr. Anderson could answer your guesticn more
specifically. Maybe ycu would have to have it locked at, but my
understanding is that a foundation permanently attached to the

ground is the key.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Roy, based on what you've heard, coculd you
add & little information on that?

MR. SMART: No. 1, vou live in a subdivision?

MR. WRIGET: Correct.

MR. SMART: 1If you're a subdivision within a subdivision, you
are subject to the same requirements as a foundation system.
(inaudible). . .then the connection, the electrical, gas,
plumbing, those connections are the same as would be required
under the Uniform Building Code.

MR. WRIGHT: Well, they seid that I had a choice. I could
dig out, put a wall around, with dirt up to the wall. My
responsibility . . (background noise). . that's the only
inspection I really recuire.

MR. SMART: Well, HCD makes no inspecticn on subdivisions.
They are all performed by a local building inspector.

MR. WRIGHT: Maybe that's the reason I've had a complaint for
many months. . . (backoround ncise). . .One other guestion, where
does Consumer Affairs come into this with respect to the
Contractors' License Roard? This is something else. I've had
two in there now, one for over 14 months that's not settled yet.
And so far I've had two men come out from the State Contractors'
ILicense Board - haven't heard a word - nothing from HCD.

-€6S-—
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SENATOR CRAVEN: This has to do with a complaint against a
contractor?

MR. WRIGHT: The first one, yes. The second one is for some
work done on the outside, which HCD tells me they have nothing to
do with that now because I'm on a permanent foundation. So who
is responsible? What is a permannt foundation?

SENATOR CRZVEN: Well, John, based on what Mr. Wright has
said, I don't envisicn that as a permanent foundation. 2Am I
wrong?

MR. TENNYSON: Well, no, I'm not sure it is a permanent
foundation. BRut s Mr. Smart indicated, they do not have
jurisdiction in "subdivisions" regardless of. . .

SENATOR CRAVEN: Which you are in, of course?

MR. TENNYSON: Now with regard to the contractor who put up
the awning or what have you, you should have recourse through the
Contractors' State License Board. That's correct. Not the
Department cof Housing and Community Development unless it is a
dealer who is doing the work that was part of the original
contrezct. Then they might have some recourse against the
dealer's licence if you can show fraud or scmething of this
nature, but an installer or contractor would not be under the
jurisdiction of HCD. At least that's my understanding. You

would have to go through the Contractors' State License Board.



SENATOR CRAVEN: But if it's a complaint about & contractor,
T think a comment was made earlier today, that there is such a
backlog of people waiting to get answers after having filecd
complaints, that this is not unusual. I would say it is
abhorrent, but not unusual. We may be able to assist vou if we
might have the opportunity cf speaking with you after the
meeting, and see what we can do.

MR. WRIGHT: Senator, I appreciate your letting me talk here,
but I've been waiting now for 11 months for someone from HCD to
come out. I've got cracks; I can't clean the carpet; I can't do
anything until something is done.

SENATOR PRESLEY: Mr. Wright, after you speak to Mr. Smart
and you resolve whatever you have with HCD, then whatever Mr.
Smart says is outside cof their jurisdiction, if ycu will let me
know, and if it involves the Contractors' State License Board,
then I'll see what I can do to hélp.

MR. WRIGHT: Thank ycu, Senator. Thanks to all of you.

SENATOR CRAVEN: You are entirely welcome. Thank vou, sir.
Next, we have Mr. Cliff Rowland regarding residency code
enforcement.

MR. CLIFF ROWLAND: I also want to express my heartfelt

thanks for you and your staff and the work you have done for us.
You have listened to our complaints and have tried to assist us.

I want to thank you.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you.

MR. ROWLAND: I live in Chula Vista. My name is Cliff
Rowland. As I sat here, I have learned a great deal this
morning. I want to talk to you some more about the County of San
Diego and the inspections they do. Almost four years ago I got &
call from a mobilehome park in Spring Valley that had a drainage
problem. Every time it rained there was about 3 feet of water
caucht there, ana there were four mobilehomes that had to leave
the area because they were flooded all the time. One lady even
lost the skirting from her coach because of the water. To this
date that problem hasn't been taken care of. Rick Ramirez, the
second in command in the Health Department for the City of San
Diego, saw me some time back and he said, "Cliff, it looks like
we're going to get that taken care of." ©Now that's been four
yvears, and the condition still exists. Something like that is
ridiculous.

Now the reason I'm here todav is to talk about the
enforcement of the residency code. 1I'll briefly state what I
want to state. Recause of the relatively permanent nature of
residents in certain parks and their substantial investment which
a mcbilehome represents, residents of mcbilehome parks are

entitled to live in conditions which assure their health and



safety, their welfare, and a decent living environment, which
protect the investment of their mobilehomes. Now beyond the
responsibility for the enforcement of the Mcbilehome Park Act,
the owner or cperator cof a mobilehcme park shall abate any
nuisance in a mobilehome park within five days or within such
longer period of time as mey be allowed by the enforcement
agency. After he has been givern written notice to remove the
nuisance, if he fails to do sc within the time, the District
Pttorney of the County in which the mobilehome park is situated
shall bring & civil action to abate the nuisance in the Superior
Court in the name of the pecple of California.

This is something that I've gone to the District Attorney
about, and they say they don't have the money to do it, and it
isn't their responsibility. You have to file a claim in the
civil court. This comes from the residency code that is mandated
by the State of California. Well, a citation has been written,
and it isn't abated. I can cite cases where - the one I did cite
about the drainage - and I can cite another one where for three
years the streets were in such deplorable condition, the pecple
couldn't even walk in the park. No lichting - lightirg is
something that's very scarce.

2s a mobilehome park gets older, problems crop up. The park
that I live in, because of a cgas leak and because of the
reluctance of the manager to take care of it, we lost a

mobilehome. Finally, the inspector in our city - there was



another gentleman who had & gas leak, they kept smelling gas -
came out and they hired a plumber who dug up the gas lines and
said there was no leak. It got so bad that finally we had San
Diego Gas and Electric come out with their sniffer. They have a
machine to locate leaks. They found a leak. They contacted the
inspector for the City of Chula Vista, who came out and said, "If
you don't fix this immediately, we are going to shut down this
park."

These are the things we have to have. These are the
responsibility of ocur officials. I'm not - I don't want to sound
bitter - yet when we go into these parks and see the conditions
like Sophie was talking about - the sewage or the septic tanks -
why doesn't the inspection department write a citation and if it
ien't abated, turn it over to the District Attorney when the
state mandates that the District Attorney shall step in and
handle the case?

2 mobilehome park cut in Lakeside, I don't know how long they
fought, but they finally cot a $3.4 million settlement. But if
the District Attorney had done their job, or the inspection
department ané the District Attorney, had done their iob, this
civil action wouldn't have been taken. So please look very

carefully intc the fact of the responsibility of cfficials in
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handling citations. If the citation hasn't been abated, then it
should be turned over tc the District Attorney. Thank you.

SENATCR CPRAVEN: Thank you very much, Mr. Rowland. Next we
have Mr. Peter Cuercia. (nc response). How about Mr. or Mrs.
Leonard Fidlon?

MR. LEONARD FIDLON: (inaudible from audience).

SENATOR CRAVEN: Yes, sir. Would you please come up to the
microphone, Mr. Fidlon? T think your wife delivered a letter to
the committee earlier. Is there anything you wish to add to
that?

MR. FIDLON: Yes, sir.

SENATCR CRAVEN: All right, whatever you feel is appropriate.

MR. FIDLON: Ny name is Leonard Fidlon. Again, I would like
to compliment the Senators and the committee on behalf of the
residents in our park. We have observed your efforts over the
past years, and we approve of them highly. We are here to
continue tc seek your cooperation.

SENATQOR CRAVEN: Where do you live, Mr. Fidlon?

MR. FIDION: We're at the Desert Sands, an adult community
park in Cathedral City.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Yes, you are in Senator Presley's district.
Also, probably, Bill Bradley's district.

MR. FIDLCN: Yes, sir. We 5rought a contingent cf a few
people who are representatives of ocur park. I have nothing

prepared except that I want to emphasize, if I may, the primary



_75_

item on the letter we delivered pertaining to adult parks. Ve
have been quite unclear as tc what the meaning of SB 213 would be
if it were enacted. FHowever, we believe that it would help
clarify the pcsitions of parks, such as senior parks, family
parks and adult parks. Our main concern pertaining to adult
parks is that when we purchased our park, and we did 5-1/2 years
ago, we were civen a brochure by R. C. Roberts, whc has a number
of parks in the state, and in his brochure he refers to not only
secure entries, etc., but adult living - nothing about creating a
family park atmosphere.

Lately we have seen children in the park, pregnancies
occurring, and it is rather frustrating where we picked a
communitv of this type so that after a number of years of being
away from families with children and having the right to have
grandchildren visit, for example, in the park, we still are
facing the insecurity of having families with children around us.
You can understand that. We were just hcping that with your
legislation we could continue tc enjoy our homes. Most cf us
were kids ourselves, and we have no right to talk about children
in that manner, but there comes a time when you find you are
living in a space where things are truly not conducive to
family-type living. That is the primary reason for this

statement.
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We've heard a number of other items pertaining to inadequate
maintenance in other parks. I think we are cuite fortunate
althcugh we have some water puddling in our streets. We have
walkways that were created where it is awfully dark at night, and
some of the walkways have lights that have not been maintained.
Other walkways have no lights whatsoever. Ve have no sidewalks
so we have to resort tc using the parkways. In that respect we
also have to protect ourselves either with flashlichts or
whatever with oncoming traffic in and around the park. The park
management has been most inadecuete over the years. There hes
been a great chance of management, and I think the responsibility
lies with the park owner and not the managers. Some have been
adequate and some have not been cualified. 1In fact, many of them
have not. Consecuently, we, as residents in the park, have been
suffering.

I don't want tc belabor the point, but in talking about
maintenance, we have had a number cof complaints registered with
the local authorities in the county pertaining to pools, lack of
chlorine, tiles falling off, dogs running around unleashed, or
even walking in the park -with leashes, when they are strictly
told not to walk their dogs in the park in accordance with the
restrictions set down by the park management. They said take

your dogs outside.
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Now, these are vioclations, and there have been a number of
them violated by the park manager, or he has just been incon-
siderate of the tenants. I don't know what else I could say. I
think it is apparent as to what our intent is.

The fifth item here referred to is that the residents have
been asking thev have the richt of first refusal, should the
owner want to sell his property, so that we would be able to
purchase same. I think we could then enjoy our home as we do now
and we woculdn't have to be concerned with park closures. Ve
woulén't have to be concerned with moving ocur five-year old homes
to another area at a great cost, and I think this is about all I
have tc sey. I want to thank all of you.

SENATOR CRAVEN: You are entirely welcome. We appreciate
your being with us tcday. Bill, you represent Cathedral City, do
vou not?

MR. BERADLEY: Yes.

SENATOR CRAVEN: That centleman is one of your constituents.
Let's see, next I believe we have Marie Malone, who is Vice
President of the Golder State Mobilhome Owners League. It's nice
to have you with us again, Marie.

MS. MARIE MALONE: Thank yvcou, Senator, and thanks to all of

you for takino the time to be down here this rmorning. Now you
understand we do have some problems in the inspectione of parks.
I'd like to put the tcpping on that story, if I may. 1In 1978 a

park had sewer running down the streets. In 1983 the same park



haé sewer running down the streets. In 1984, I am finally glad
to say, that that particular park won a judgment of $4.3 million.
I think perhaps part of it should have been aimed at the County
of San Diego for not enforcing the code. That one has a happy
ending.

In 1978 or 1979 Sophie and I were out in a park here in San
Diego, east county. She caid, "You have to see this, Marie." I
went with her, we looked at it, and I was afraid to have her
drive through the park because I thought the car was gocing to

isappear in the holes, and I'm not exaggerating. It was very
unsafe. You had to skirt the edges tc get around. She wondered
what happened because we had asked for the inspection of that
park. About four weeks agc we were back at that park. She said
cshe wanted to come with me, so we went down. We were coming into
the park, and it was all dark, and I said, "Well, where is the
meeting?" She said it was to be at the clubhouse and we would be
there in just a minute, and we were at the clubhcuse in just a
minute. PRut the clubhouse was locked. The owner had decided -
this is an adult park - this is the same park with the holes in
the street before - this is an adult park and anyorne who was
geing to have a baby would have to move out of the park - to
close the recreation, giving them a written nctice that he was

turning the recreation area - was gcing to fill the swimming pool
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with cement - now, yocu won't believe this as I couldn't either -
was going to fill the swimminc pocl with cement and he's turning
the clubhouse into a day care center.

I was horrified, but I was more horrified when Sophie finally
ran down the letter from ECD, which is now over a year cld, that
said you don't really have to repair the streets. You just have
to put a little gravel in the holes, and it is perfectly all
right. And, ladies and cgentlemen, we have that in writing. That
horrifies me. And this is one of the problems that is oncoing.
We have had marvelous cooperation from the County of San Diego
with inspections up to the last two years. ©Now, I don't know
what has happened. T do know that two years ago we fought like
crazy to keep inspections at the local level, rather then the
state, because they had responded so beautifully to any calls we
made. It is probably something internal that has been happening
within the county. We're not sure, but we won't let up cn it.

We will see the Supervisors.

But what I would like to add is something else entirely
different from inspections. As you know, last year and the year
before, I think two years running now, in the Legislature we have
asked for legislation where the people in the park may
participate in forming the regulations of the park - the
reculations by which we must live. What we have asked for in the

past is that 51% of the park concur with major changes in the
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regulations. Then the regulation could take place. We lost
those bills both times. I want to annource that we will be back
in January, and we will be back on the premise that a contract is
a contract and when you enter into a mcbilehome park, you make a
contract with that owner and he makes one with you, and the rules
are part of that contract.

We feel that when a contract is to be changed, it should be
changed by mutual agreement. Now, there is real seriocus
foundation for the reascn we are coming back. FRight now in many
of the parks here in Scuthern California - and I have understood
it is beginning to reach Northern California - we have a very
serious proklem where the homeowner is between the devil and the
deep blue sea. The park owners are coming out, both in leases
and in regulations, and stating the fact to the individuals in
the park, individual homeowners, scme of them saving you will
have a mirnimum of $100,000 liability insurance. OK. No problem
on that score. The problem that we face is this: the park owner
says he wants to be listed as an insured on your mobilehome
policy. Now we went to our insurance ccmpanies. Our insurance
companies tell us they will not write that type of insurance for
us. They will not put the park owner on, and there is a reason.
The park is commercially insured; the homeowners' insurance comes
under a completely different set of rates. ©Now, by the fact that

we no longer have the ability to have any irput in our



regulations, here is the position we are in. The park owner in
regulations says we must have this. We cannot get the insurance
to fulfill that. The park owner has every right under the code,
because if we break the regulation, we can be served eviction
notice. We think the time has come for us come back and ask for
participation on the regulations in the park.

We will be back again this vear on the security deposits.
They are now reaching the level of over $1,000 a year. Perhaps
we can find a way that will satisfy and protect the park owner
and also satisfy the mobilehome owner.

We would not have any objection - and I hear the park owners
saying this today - that look - somebody can leave the park, and
where vou are on master meters, vou can leave the park and your
utility bill then falls in our laps. What we say is that we
would like to do the same thing that thev do in home residences.
If your San Diego Gas and Eiectric says, for example, that you
have to make a utility deposit the first year you hook up, we'd
make a utility deposit. After & year or two years in the park,
whatever the date may be that you would want to set, we have
proven curselves that we are not going to skip out overnight and
not pay our utilities. Then that utility deposit would be
returned.

Right now your security deposits are getting over $1,000.

When you multiply that by 200 spaces in one park, and this mcney
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goes to the park owner, he can keep it maybe 18 or 20 years, as
long as you are in that park, and it is an excellent source of
funding without any interest. The interest is being lost by the
hcmeowners.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN MOJONNIEP: How much deposit? £1,000?

MS. MALONE: $1,000 when you come into a park is the security
deposit. Some of the park owners are coming back to people who
have lived there five tco ten years and are now asking for
security deposits from them too.

SENATOR McCORQUODALE: I have a bill which did that, and we
have a park in my district that if you talk to them about the
bill, you get no interest at all because they all ficure they
live there, they don't have to worry about that and they are not
going to be subjected to it. Recently that park owner instituted
on the anniversary of their being in the park, they now have to
come up with it. So three people so far have said they had to
pay & security deposit, so I got a command performance to come
down to their park. They want to rent buses; they want to go to
Sacramento; all at once they are takinc a whole new interest in
this area. I suspect it's not going to be as difficult next year
as it was this vear because a lct of parks evidently are being
affected by this.

MS. MALONE: OK. My one last item - and cothers mentioned

briefly by the gentleman from Cathedral City. Two years ago,
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when we asked for the first right of refusal, Mr. Costa then w
Chairman cf the Assembly Housing Committee. I remember very well
what he said to me. He said that with an organization like
GSMOL, why don't vou go out and orcganize thoese peopie to buy the
parks and compete in the market? We took him up on what he
proposed. This year I would like to return for a very, very
serious reason. We are up against the most brutal ccmpetition
you could encounter in the purchase of our parks. Right now in
the individual purchase of the Wilks parks, which number around
25 in the State of California and which most are availakle for
purchase, we are competina with the DeAnza Corporation. Now I
don't know whether vou are familiar with the DeAnza Corporation,
but we in the mobilehome parks are. So is E. F. Hutton, and they
are now sending us all brochures in case we would like to triple
our money in seven years, we can become a member of the DeAnza
Corpecration. We're up against very real mcney. We're up against
more than that. As we work through cur regulaticns andvthat,
there is a time gap fcr the people to purchase the park. We
cannot snap and do it overnight, no matter how well we are
organized, because of the regulations that we come under from
government, which are placed there for cur proteétion, and we're
not complaining about that protection.

But we would like to have - we'd like to come back - not for

the firest right of refusal. In spite of the cocmpetition, we are
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willing to compete in the market. So what we would like to krow
from the park owners is, prior to the time they place their park
on the market, that the residents of that park be nctified they
intend to sell their property. This gives us that step ahead for
our finances, for our cgetting through the red tape that we must
go through in order to buy. This gives ue the oppcrtunity to
immediately get back tc the person who is selling the park and
let him know that we want to purchase that park, and that we will
compete in the market to get it.

We have lost some very, very sad cases because of the length
of time involved. Wwe have lost twc parks, for example, in Los
Angeles County that were purchased while the residents were
trying to purchase them. Somebody came along with the greenbacks
in their hands. They purchased them, and thev turned right
arcund and told the people they would sell it tc them in six
months at $1 million more. We loét a beautiful park in Palm
Springs just the other day that only sold for $1/2 million less
than the residents of the park had offered, and they had the
money and they were ready to go. So we are getting into scme
verv serious problems in the time element of being able to
purchase a park. Of course, we do believe that this is the
lasting sclution.

Thank yocu, Senator Craven.
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SENATOR CRAVFN: Thank you, Marie, very much. Loyd, wculd
vou like to say a few words? Give us the benediction or whatever
strikes you as being appropriate. This is Loyd Zimmerman, ladies
and gentlemen. He is the President of GSMOL.

MKk. LOYD ZIMMERMAN: I would like to answer one question that

was brought up on the subdivision. I live in a subdivision, one
of the oldest subdivisions in the State of Califcornia. In our
mobilehome park we are under the city building departmert for all
changes in construction. The matter of the foundation - we do
not have foundaticns and you do not have a foundaticn unless you
have a perimeter of concrete and steel, and that in turn is
fastened@ to the mobilehome, and it must be prepared to receive
it. The skirting of brick cr whatever you put arcund the outside
does not act as a foundation. Anyway, we have lived there for,
let's see, we started in 1962 and the only changes that you have
to go through HUD or BCD is if you change the constructicn or if
vou do something to that mobilehome which adds weight to the rocf
or any of the other rules concerning the constructicn of that
mobilehome.

I would also like to answer one little thing that one cf our
present directors brought up. All these people dying in these
0ld mobilehomes. 1I've never seen very many laid out. I lived in
one at the beach 25 years ago. At that time the widest thing you

could get was an 8 wide. If that was still in pecsition teoday, it
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would have reqular upkeep, and I would say it was probably in
better condition than my 1975 mobilehome. He talks about a
furnace and all these things. ©Now if you live in a house, don't
you upgrade it and the ecuipment cccasionally? I think that
people living in mobilehomes, if somethinc happens, they call in
a maintenance person and have that fixed. I don't believe people
move into their mobilehomes and just let all the ecuipment go to
pot over 20 years. They don't do that. I think that any
mobilehome that is in positicn and has been there and in most
parks you will finé they have been there - there was a 1960, most
of them were 1960 to 1965 - I think - those can be in just as
high a condition today as a stick home can be, provided they have
had regular maintensnce. And that is the thinc that I've seen
happen so many times in Hemet. Before the 17-year law, they'd go
in and say you had to move ocut. The lady moves out. She finally
gets a bid frcm a dealer of $2500 and the park manager sayvs he
will give her $£3000. She comes back a few years later ahd that
mobilehome is still in the same position. He turned around and
sold it for $12,000. Now if there was something wrong with that
mobilehcme, why wcoculd he allow it to stay irn that park? That was
the reason we fought so hard to get this 17-year bill. And ell
these horror stories we have about people dying and mobilehomes
falling down, which I don't believe ever happens, because I can

take you into parks where - well, Marie, you recently hacd some
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where they were updating them. You can drive through and they
are terrific. Sure, they are older but they are well kept and
they can be exceptionallv gocod housing for our pecple. That's
what we want.

I want to thank vou for all of your work. This may be your
last time to hear me talk to you because, as you know, I'm not
running for president again but I may be in the background.
Thank vyou.

SENATOF CRAVEN: Thark vou very much, Lovd. I'm confident
that vou are going to be around. I don't know that "background"
would be appropriate, but I'm sure you are geing to be hovering
around. Finé of like the Holy Spirit.

Do we have anyone else in the audience whose name I don't
have on our list?

(Mrs. Fidlon inaudible from audience).

SENATOR CRAVEN: Sure. I thcught that the gentlemen to your
right, who I presume is your husband, made a statement for the
team, but if. . .

(inaudible)

SENATOR CRAVEN: EHe didn't, huh? Well, we're not going
anywhere. ¥hy don't you come cn up and give us your name?

MRS. LUCENE FIDLON: My name is Lucene Fidlon, and I'm from

the Desert Sands Mobilehome Park in Cathedral City. I have two

inguiries to direct tc you, Senator.
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I'é like to know just where ycur bill, SB 213, which deals
with adult parks, is at this time, and the second point of my
question is what can we dec to speed it up, to get people involved
cso they will know there is an answer to our problem?

SENATOR CRAVEN: Is it in Ascembly Housing, John? The
Senate. - The bill is in the Senate Housing Committee. Go ahead,
John. John is the consultant.

MR. TENNYSCN: For the benefit of the audience, the measure
to which Mrs. Fidlon is referring is SB 213, which would
authorize mobilehome park menagers to have, not adult rules but
irstead, senior rules for persons 55 or older in the event the
court outlaws adult only parks. The measure is in the Senate
Housing Committee. There is qguite a bit of oppositicn to it.
There is not unanimous support even from the mcbilehome residents
for the bill, and we have not been able to assess - which will be
done in January - what can be done with the bill because the
whole issue is now before the California Supreme Court where the
issue will probably be decided.

MRS. FIDLON: VWould it be of ary help for us to write to
whomever we can? Is that Senator Greene who has it?

MR. TENNYSON: Senator Greene is the Chairman of the Senate
Housing Committee. He would be one person you could write to.
But the court really has taken the issue at this point, and I

don't mean to say that any efforts that you wculd undertake would



be of no avail, but it has gone beyond the pcint where, frankly,
unless there is a quick decision by the court or there is sone
facet we haven't considered, that the adult only gquesticn will
not be decided by the Legislature, but instead will be decided by
the California State Supreme Court, which now has jurisdiction on
that issue.

MRS. FIDLCN: And when will they convene?

MR. TENNYSON: Well, the courts are - I don't know how to sav
this judiciously - rather slow in taking up things. It could be
decided - I believe Mr. Wehrman said he thought the consideration
of the brief would take place in three or four months. The issue
could be decided within a year. That would be my guess. But I'm
sure there will continue to be some concern about the issue of
what do you do with the rules that are now in existence in parks,
particularly senior citizens or retired perscns, and that issue,
even if the court rules against adult only, which many people
think it will based cn prior decisions, that issue will probably
come back before the Legislature. Whether it is in the form of
SE 213 is another issue with regard to the protection of those
who have already established an existing retired lifestyle. So
that issue won't go away, but I can't guarantee it will be
addressed this session.

MRS. FIDLON: In other words, it wouldn't help us to write at

this point?
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MR. TENNYSON: I think it would probably be helpful to write
to the Chairman of the Committee, Senator Leroy Greene, and alert
him of your concerns, but I can't say that that would be crucial
in moving the bill out cf that committee.

MRS. FIDLON: Yes, I understand. Thank you very much.

SENATOR CRAVEN: You're entirely welccme. Thank you. Anyone
else? Yes, mam.

MS. CHRISTINE EVERITT: My name is Christine Everitt, and I

would like to know - this is just a suggestion, food for thought
- I would like to see a meeting of the minds or coming together
of WMA, GSMOL, HCD and ccnsider the possibility of developing a
code of standards - whatever you care to call it - or licensing
with educational programs for those whe wish to be managers of
mobilehome parks. Mr. McAdco talked about the training program
they had for those who were inspectors, and it works very well.
I think if managers had more training, mcre education and
training, they could be helpful in eliminating - perhaps nct
eliminating but allevieting is perhaps the wocrd - scme of the
problems that I've heard discussed today. So many times we have
managers who have nc idea whatsoever of what a2 mobilehome park or
mobilehome living is a1l about. 2nd I think it would be worthy
of consideration. Thank you very much.

SENATOR CPAVEN: Thank vou very much. We appreciate the

~

suggestion. Anyone else? Yes, sir?



MR. JIM MANN: Senator, I feel like I know you as I get

letters from you. My name is Jim Mann and I happen to live here
in the City of Escondido, and I would like to ack a cguestion.
People in our park who have mobilehomes older than 17 years and
vou talk about the electrical wiring and stuff. I do have a
master's electrical license and my home does have good wiring in
it. If I didn't think that was safe, do you think I would live
in it? OK. Now, some people do want to sell and then we have a
manager who has put restrictions on that you couldn't live up to
and still sell your hcme. He wants new roof, new siding,
vertical sidinag, and he wants it off of there. You couldn't rent
a space in our park for a billion dcllars because he is getting
them off and putting his own trailers in and selling them. Now I
want to know if that's legal to force somebody with an older home
off, fixing this whole thing so you can't sell it?

SENATOR CRAVEN: John.

MR. TENNYSON: There are several questions here. First of
all, under the law that Mr. McaAdoo referred to that was passed a
few vears ago, the mobilehome now would have to meet inspecticn
criteria. If it failed to meet that criteria, then it would have
to be moved. To answer your second guestion, I don't believe
there is any law that restricts a park owner or anyone else from
moving a mobilehcme onto an existing vacant parcel, whether the
parcel originally contained your mobilehome which was removed

because it didn't meet these standards or not



MR. MANN: Well, I was just woncdering about these standards
they set up that you couldn't meet?

MR. TENNYSCN: Well, they can't force you off - at least
that's my understanding - upon the sale cr resale of a mobilehome
- they can't require that you remcove the mobilehome because it
doesn't have any new features cr what have you unless it dcesn't
meet certain standards upon inspection.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, John, I would interpret your remarks
in relation to what Jim said as to say that there is no way,
really, that they could force the construction of a new roof, new
siding, or something like that as long as the unit meets code and
standards.

MR. MANN: Thank vou, Senator. That's just what I wanted to
hear.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Anyone else? Yes, sir?

MR. ELMER ANDERSON: My name is Elmer 2Anderson, and I am here

as an observer for the California Travel Parks Association, and
we come under the provisions of Title 25. Cne of the things I
would like to bring to the attention of the committee is that in
the travel parks there is a community of long-term people. We
have the snowbirdse who come down from Canada and Northern
California and spend the winter months in Californie, which
represents a considerable population. We also have considerable

pressure in the campgrounds toc accept permanent residents. Most



._93._

campgrounds and most RV parks of this type do have people with
less than mobilehomes who are on a long-term basis. We find that
in many cases the law cdoesn't acknowledge this, and I think that
in vour deliberations and work that you want to keep in mind that
in many RV parks there are people whc have tc be covered. For
example, we are having a problem about submetering electrical
bills. The law just is not clear, is not positive, that we can
submeter electrical charges in the same fashion as mobilehome
parks. So the point I would like to make is there shoulcd be a
consideration of the RV parks and their specific problems in the
deliberaticns of your work.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Yes, sir, we get more inquiries about your
pecple all the time. Where dc you live?

MR. ANDERSON: I'm on Palomar Mountain. We're getting on an
average of two cr three calls a day from people who are looking
for campgrocunds, places to put a trailer and stay.

SFNATOR CRAVEN: Thank you, Mr. Anderson. We appreciate it
very much. There's another gentleman over there. Yes, sir? I
think this is going to be the anchor speaker here.

MR. JAKE JACOBSEN: Senators, fellow guests, it's a pleesure

to be here. I happen to ke a neighbor of Mr. Mann. We have a
cituation that is rather unigue. T have experienced people in
the concentration camps in Europe who had their fingers broken.

In our camp, in our park we have a concentration camp. They just



break hearts every dav. There's a gentleman over here, 985 years
of age, another neighbor of mine, who will tell you the whole
story. I came to this park two years aco, and I thcucht I had
reached a2 point where I could relax. After I had been there
about a month I realized I had made a fatal mistake. Now all I'm
trying to do is correct my own mistakes. I have here a letter
where this man absolutely sets up criteria that no one could
possibly live with, and then he comes in and with a variance
which isn't in accordance with the cocde of the City of Escondidc
does anything he likes. If he wants to make lots larger, he
makes them larger. If he wants to make them smaller, he makes
them smaller. If he wants to build within three feet of the
building next door, he does so. Now, I don't understand this.
I've been a developer for 16 years, and I don't understand all
the Califorrnia laws, of course. . .

SENATOR CRAVFEN: We have & new law that will take care of
that problem. . .

MR. JACOBSEN: What's that?

SENATOR CRAVEN: We have a new law that will take care of the
problem you just. . .

MR. JACOBSEN: Ch, I know what that is. I tell you I would
just like to cive this to you. Another thing they are renting
the ground - and I see that park owner left - and T believe they

are éiscriminrating against the people who are renting. We own
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our homes, and here he puts out a reculation tc cgualify somebcdy
for a $50,000 loan on a mocbilehome that he put in that cost him
$15,000. I don't understand that kind of justice, but I guess if
that's California justice, I'm gcing back to where I came from.
Thank you.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I think that we have -- have yocu not spoken
already, sir?

MR. ROWLAND: I just want to say something about inspections.
I know we're all tired. My name is Cliff Rowland. I live in
Chula Vista. The City of Chula Vista contracts with the state to
inspect mobilehomes. I got a call from a gentleman who wanted an
inspection in his park so I gave him the name of the building
department, the head cf the building department, and told him to
call him, and he'd get an inspection. Later I stopped by the
building department, and J was informed by the inspector that
thev were no longer going to inspéct mobilehomes. Now maybe this
will do for the people who live in the County of San Diego.
Having been told that, the following Tuesday night under oral
communication we had a pretty fair sized group of mobilehome
people there, and you know mobilehome pecple have a loud voice.
I got up under oral communication, and I was very unfriendly in
what I had to say. At the end of my oral communication, the City
Council conce again is inspecting mobilehcmes. I made the county

do that.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you very much, sir. Ladies and
gentlemer, all of us here want to thank vou very much for your
attendance. I particularly want to thank Assemblywoman Mcjonnier
and Assemblyman Bill Bracdley and my Senate colleacues, Senator
McCorcuodale and Senator Presley, for joining with us today. I
think by their presence you could very easily discern that these
legislators are very interested in that which you have to say.
and I think that they, along with myself, will work unceasinagly
to try to rectifv some of the wrongs and tc solve some of the
problems and perhaps come up with some innovative thoughts which
you alcre, really, I suppose, could help us with. That has to
come from vou, the people. That's why we heretofcre have been
very close to GSMCL, also very close to WMA, because I don't
think it is a eingular track we travel. I think it has to be
done in tandem. You can't talk about one without including the
other, either by insinuation, or inference, or whatever. It's
very, very important that we ccoperate, and one lady, Christine,
as T recall was her name, said about getting together. We're
geing tc have to have a sort of summit somewhere, I guess, and
perhaps that is not a bad idea.

We'll pursue all of the things that you have told us today,
and we want vou to know, those of us representing you in various
areas of the state, that if there is something you are interested
in, and you think we could be of assistance, please let us know

and let us see what we can do to help you.



For all of us, thank you very much.
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PUBLIC HEARING

SENATE SELECT COMMITTEE ON MOBILEHOMES
OCTOBER 22, 1985

TESTIMONY

Topic: Mobilehome In-park Inspections, et al

Presented by: ILeonard G. Wehrman
161 Pranciscan Drive
Daly City, CA 94014

Place: City Council Chambers
Escondido, Califormia

PURPOSE OF TESTIIMONY

The purpose of my testimony and remarks today are to bring to the
Senate Select Committee on Mobilehomes and tothe Califormia Legislature,
40 the mobilehome owners in rental parks in Califormia, and to the
general public some of the key issues that are having a profound and
deteriorating impact on the mobilehome lifestyle and the peaceful enjoy-
ment of this form of community living as they relate tothe subject.

BACKGROUNDs

At the outset, may we express our appreciation to you, Mr,! Chairman,
and the Members of the Select Committee and your most outstanding staff
for scheduling this hearing and for providiug a forum to present our
viewpoints on the particular events happening in the mobilehome commun-
ities in Califormia. ,

May we also commend you, Mr,' Chairman, for the legislative efforts
and successes during the 1985 legislative session. We are indeed
proud and grateful ‘o have such an articulate voice in Sacramento.
Thank You, Senator Craven.'
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Topics - Mobilehome In-park Inspections, et al

TIMELINESS OF TOPIC:

As announced in your Information Paper hand-out for this hearing,
we want to present testimony onthe general subject of "Mobilehome
In-park Inspections, et al", This is a very significant and timely
series of issues because of what is hapuening today, or may be under
consideration in the near future, that will continue to have a long-
standing impact on the future of the mobilehome communities and how
some: of the high rolling investors and financial corporations mno
longer my be interested in purchasing or exchanging rental parks and
how they may no longer perceive them as sound investments,

The mobilehome park industry of existing communities and the real
estate investment groups for some time have been pursuing and conducting
workshops and through publications have been advocating a course of
action that has caused these key issues to come to the surface. So far
it appears openly that the prime motivation behind such a pursuit is
only to enhance the profit margins and inflated property values for
the investor groups at the expense of the homeowners and residents of
mobile home parks.

GENERAL TOPICS:

Some of the key topics today include:

a,! Mobilehome inspections at "re-sales" time,

b,) Mobilehome inspections at "pre-sales" time,

c. Mobilehome inspections at "installation™ time,

d.,, Fuel burning apoliances, especially hot water heaters,

e.,) Inspection of mobilehome park premises plus the homes and
the lots on a "surprise and unannounced" basis.

f.! Inspection of mobilehome dealer/salesperson licensees having
an established place of business within mobilehome parks
especially those operated by management personnel and

. : park employees on a "surprise and unannounced"™ basis,

--gs Relationship of HCD and local government on above inspections.

h, Mobilehome Iot Occupancy Deposit - aka - "Security Deposits",

i. Insurance policy beneficiaries to the park owner and other
insurance disclaimers written into leases and rental
agreements,

In addition, Mr,' Chairman, as you know, the general matter of "rent
control"” and specifically the topic of Mprice fixing of rental housing"
by local government in Califormia will receive oral arguements before
the United States Supreme Court on November 12, 1985, in Washington,

D,! C.' with a decision published during the first half of 1986,

Plus the topic of "family versus adult" mobilehome parks will be
heagg by the Californ’.a Supreme Court probadly within the nex three
months,
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ROLE OF HCD AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT ON SELECTED TOPICS:

On several of the above topics, it is our belief that HCD is caught
in the crossfire of competing interests as an administrative and an
enforcement agency and still try to be sensitive to the needs and ‘
concerns of the mobilehome owners and the communities they reside in.'

Over the years, the Department has been cooperative and generous in
their assistance to the mobilehome matters, but the new issues that
have arisen over the past year or so, at least thus far, the admini-
strators and management of HCD have not recognized the existing situa-
tion and have not sought out the alternative and workable solutions
in concert with the affected home-owners.,

This has, in part, brought us to this public hearing seeking the
format to pursue many of the issues and to find the answers. It appears
that much catch-up and an extra effort is necessary to address and
resolve the issues at hand.

REBUTTAL TIME:

Mr,! Chairman, may we request rebuttal time at your discretion, if
it be necessary for me to respond to any issue raised in my presenta-
tion and challenged by other speakers. Thank You.

KEY ISSUES AND TOPICS:

As a starting point, may we commence with the current topic that
triggered my coming here today:



August 3, 1985

Susan A. DeSantis, Director ' ]

Department of Housing and Community Development

State of California ST

921 Tenth Street o

Sacramento, CA 95814 - L (916) 445-4775

Re: Health and Safety Inspections on the Resales (only)
of Mobilehomes and Manufactured Homes.

Dear Ms,' DeSantis:

?h;s is an -inguiry of significance that centers solely around the
admlnls?rative and legal impact relating to the Hezalth and Safety
Ipspectlons performed by the Department personnel exclusively at the
time of resales of a mobilehome or manufactured home by the homeowner
to a third party and whenever the home is sited in a rental type park.
To narrow this point, we do not want to convey or include any other
issue except the home inspection at resales time.

In addition to the current Health and Safety statutes and zdmin-
istrative regulations relating to the subject matter, we are mindful
of the Mobilehome Residency Law, especially Section 798.73 (being
amended by SB 873 during the 1985 session;.

BACKGROUITD OF CURIENT SITUATION: The park managements are demanding
That the bhomes being sold be supjected to a thorough Health and Safety
inspection, not only for the exterior features, utility hookups, and
accessory structures, but also the complete interior of the home for
health and safety purposes also covering structural and utility systems,
and a public report to be prepared on the violations. In many parks
this is an arbitrary and blanket requirement directed tothe homeowners
regardless of the home's age, general condition, or overall appearance,’

Often the demand is made verbally either directly to the homeowner
or to the selling agent at a time when the pressures of selling, their .
upcoming relocation, and mostly by senior-adults, are at the high point.
At this time the homeowners are quite vulnerable and nearly defenseless
- and the management pounces on it - and HCD is an unwitting partic-
ipant to the game about to played out.

. The park management next places the full responsibility and burden
for the inspection scheduling, costs for HCD persommel and the actual
inspection, and naturally the ultimate expenditures to_ abate the
violations noted on the inspection report onto the selling homeowners.

INSPECTION BY HCD: Unfortunately, lMs.' DeSantis, when your department
is called to perform the inspection HCD is now caught in the crossfire
and whatever hapvens next only adds to an already existing dilemna of
the homeowner. When the HCD Inspector arrives to perform the inspection
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it is a sensitive and anxious period for the typical homeowmer as
they have no concept of what the inspector is looking for, or what

to expect, or what the consequences nmay be, The Department is looked
upon as being allied with the park management and a negative attitude
and general distrust develops all too quickly.

NATURE OF VIOLATIONS: Occasionally the violations cited are technical
in nature involving precise standards, dimensions, or requirements.
These make 1t difficult for the homeowner to understand the true value
of the v%olation; Does it really maeke that much difference or is it
a violation because it does not conform exactly? Remember we are
talking about low-cost housing in a rental type park! Can a variance
be granted? If no, why not? 1Is the citation truly consequential?

According to our investigation for this inguiry and the information
from your management inspection staff, some of the violations that are
being c%ted, from both outside and inside the home, and shown on the
inspection report, may be considered as “existing non-conforming", are
to be "advisory only", and are for the "general guidance by the homeowmer".
However, they are not identified as such on the inspection report - 2
public report - that leaves all parties to believe that each violation
is subject to either abatement within 30 days or possibly an administra-
tive action as a misdemeanoT.

EXTERIOR VERSUS INTERIOR: We are presenting in this section a serious
and significant procedural question as to whether the park management

{or including Real =state Brokers and Mobile Home Dezlers acting as 2
selling agent) can legally demand that the homeovmer submit to a "too

to bottom" exterior and interior home hezlth and safety inspection by _
your state agency or The local jurisdiction or by eny private contractor.'

civil Code Section 798.73 (d) states "It is in a significent rundowvm
condition or in disrepair, as determined by the general condition of
the mobilehome and its acceptability to the health and safety of the
occupants and to the public, exclusive of its age. The menagement shall
use reasonable discretion in determining the general condition of the
mobilehome and its accessory structures. The management shall bear the
burden of demonstrating that the mobilehome is in significant rundown

condition or in disrepair."

Taking the above wording literally and each sentence individually
and the sub-section in total, we believe that the park management has
the full burden of responsibility to demonstrate that the home to be

in a "significant rundown condition or in disrepair" and not forced
onto the homeowner or onto HCD. Secondly, that the homeovwner has &
protected right to refuse entrance to your HCD Inspector, or_ any person,
to go inside the home to perform any inspection procedure unless there
is valid and probable cause %o do so and then only for that item.
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" Re: ' Health and Safety Inspections

HCD AND LOCAL GOVERTIZNT JURISDICTIONS - Ol RESALES: Our chief
concern in thls section is that 21l mobilehome ovmers involved in the
selling of their homes are being afforded precisely the same and equal
consideration on the inspection process whether under HCD or the local
government jurisdiction assumed under Health and Safety Code 18300. We
have been told that HCD is performing the resales inspections even
though the local govermment has jurisdiétion. This does not seem to
be consistent - would you please clarify?

SHORTAGE OF INSPECTION PERSONITEL: The mobilehome owner population

has been advised thal there 1s a budgetary limitation and a shortage

of HCD inspection personnel throughout the state., On the other hand
there appears to be an increase in the number of resales and inspections.
The resales inspections seem to be taking a "priority". How can HCD
square all of this? Are there other types of inspections being put off,
ignored, or neglected?

FINAL COITIEN''S AND ANATYSIS: Ms, DeSantis, we firmly believe that any
Tesales type inspection that is demanded by the vpark management, either
directly or indirectly, and performed by your nCD inspectilon personnel
must be limited to the outside only, such as the exterior structure,
utility hookups, and accessory structures., In our opinion, the park
management has no legal or administrative standing to require your HCD
inspectors to enter or to inspect the home on the inside. Nor should
the homeowner allow them inside!

This letter has raised a series of points that are a significant
concern to the mobilehome ovmers in Califormia and the continuation of

the lifestyle.
May we respectfully request a written response to the issues at hand?

If we may be of any assistance in any mamner, please feel free to
contact us.,, Thank You.

Sincerely

é;422442£é;4204446%v&//
Leonard G.' Wehrman
Manufactured Housing Consultant
161 Franciscan Drive
Daly City, CA 94014
(415} 992-7470
Copy to:
John Ventura

Senator Cfaven
GSHOL



Robert Keefe

Hanufactured Housing Program lanacer
Department of Housing and Community Develovment
6007 Folsom Blvd T
Sacramento, CA 95819

Re: Consumer Resales Packet Provided To Homeowvmers.

Dear Bob:

Ve believe there is a demand in California, and probably across the
patlon, for the individual honeovmer of manufactured housihg and robile-
homcs, that are sited in rental type mobile home parks, to transact the
actual resales of their home to a potential purchaser without the need
for a third party licensed selling agent, be it mobile home dealer or
real estate broker, etc., In this letier we will make that case and
acconplish that tesk, sece exhibit "aw,

HEEDS O MIn EOITOWIER -~ BOMI SZLLING AND PURCTASING: Vhat the sclling
and purchasing nomz2owmer despcerately nceds 1s a proiessionally prevared
resales packet of instructions and advisory containinz the information

to prepare tune entire home environment and the lot for thie best possible
presentation to a potential purchaser, basic aporaisal technicues, how

1o mske the exterior and interior home features attmactive, repalrs to be
considered or made, upzrading the features of *he heme if necessary, and
a myriad of helvful suggestions, The vackage should also contain the
basic underzstanding of escrow, writiten or implied war-anty, financial
optionc, use tax formula, advertisement methods, basic legal recuirements,
and the general liability and resvonsibility of the seller and purciager.
Seminars and Conferences may be conducted to expnlain and provide nark
homeovmer groups with the material. In short, a complete "How to sell
or purchase a.mznufactured home" packet,

PREPAR .TICH AUD PIOVLIDLNG TIE PACKIOT: Somczone like a manufactured
housing consultant or a cource preparer would develop such a packet and
make it available to either the selling or purchasing homeowner. The
packet would contain the forms, documents, and information to complete
the home reseles. If recuestod by either the seller or the purchaser,
may "consult and advise® on the prevaration of any form or wnhom to

contact to complete the transaction and close the sales.

QUEST IO The central question for HCD to respond is: Miould this
activity require a lMobile Home Dealers or Salesperson Occupational
License"? If yes, please fully justify! Thank You,' Dob.

Sincerely ]
. 5755924;4ﬁ4q/744m64ﬂ*(

- Leonard G, Wehrman
- Manufactured Housing Consultant
- 161 Pranciscan Drive

- Daly City, C4 94014

(415) 992-7470
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BACYGRCOUIID: In most instances, ang Snlike other types of property, the
activity involvinz mobilehome resales resuires 1little or no professional
sellin; experience or an agent. This is beecau~e the homeovmer is showing
and selling their own hone and who knows that better than the ovmer - and
~what is not knovm can be easily learned.’ Ve would agree it may not be
for everyone, but it should be a personal choice, made simple to perform,
and supported by those willing to try.

It chould be noted that mony dealers in California do not prepare a
bulk of the forms and documcnts in the resales, but instead establish a
series of fee structures onto the homeowmer and turn that activity over
to a title and escrow company for the preparation, control of documents,
record keeping, disburszment of monies, and the final disposition of the
transaction., They also handle the title search thru HCD and complete
the escrow documents, plus determine the amount of use tax and obtain
the title and registration documents, etec, Generally the dealer has a
working agreement with one or more lending agents who will perform all
of the functions relating to credit background and prepare the loan
papers on the home resales.,

In addition to the above document preparaztion end fee structures, most
dealers charge a comiission fee between six and twelve percent of the
sellinz price, or tike a flat dollar amount for commission, or many take
a net listing and m~'te no disclosure of the commission, fees, selling
price, or other monetary arrangements,

The Mavercse rance of costs® To the homeo-mer ucing a selling agent
to trancact the reszles of their home in Califormia today to be about
$1,500-35,500 for comaissions, the document fees for $300-3500, plus the
points on obtnining the loan pavers - with the usuval rebate to the selling
agent. This is even if the homeovner shovs zround, The selling homsowner
could save well over ten percent of the sellinz price by knowing-what to
do and how to transact most of their sales activity using an informational
and document packet.

DEALZR JTULTIPLT LISTING AND PURCHASE ORDER DOCULITHNTS: The typical
multiple listing, purcihase order, or ecuivalent Type documents utilized
by the dealer and presented to the homeovmer contains numerous "sold as
is" and "disclaimers" and "hold harmless clauses" and "release of total
responsibility"” vrovisions., They want no liadility whatsoever, but will
require the seller to sign such a document: Iiultiple listing contracts
are most often of an exclusive natire and will not allow the sharing of
sales and comaissions except with thieir membership and the listing board.
A1 too frecuently dealers share listings and/or comuission= with real
estate brokxers and salespersons either above the board or under the table.
Some street dealers use the park managers as a salesperson for their
in-park sales activity. Some dealers pay "finder fees" to managers and
an ascortment of people, mostly unlicensed persons.

DEALER/SALISPER3IONS W1TH RESALZ OFTICE I PARX BY MAWAGIZIENT: There is
a built-in conilict of interestv witn negative results whenever the park
. management ie personally and directly involved with the in-park selling
activity., Ve Imow what rmoney and power can do to people in a captive
situation, This activity is most regrescsive and has a chilling effect
on the future of the mobilehome 1 ifestyle. :

CONTINUING EDUCATICH FOR HOMZOWIIERS: This letter has demonstrated
that the most eflective continual education program that can be developed

will be more effective when made available to the park resident/homﬁ%yner
in order to encourage more control over their lifestyle, including the

resales of their home and provperty.
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| ace . - . August 23, 1985
I, John venmra e . I, .._._..__ e e i e o _;_..-_..;,_._;-..... .;. ._;..'..4:..._.___.:‘-.--__ e
Director, Codes and Standards Division ' :
Department of Housing and Community Development
6007 Folsom Blvd .
Sacramento, CA 95819 © (916) 445=94T1
Re: ~ Dype of Hot Water Heater Appliance in Mobilehomes.

Dear John:

By this letter we are respectfully challenging the Departmentfs
policy and practice regarding the type of hot water heater appliances
that are installed in mobilehomes in the State of California, be it
nfor mobilehome use" oniy or a regular household appliance.

This pertains to homes that are rresently hooked-up to a natural gas

utility system (only) wherein the homeowner replaces an existing hot
water heater with a new unit,

For starters, according to our survey, a new "mobilehome only labelled™
hot water heater appliance has a retail cost about $40-$60 higher than
the regular such appliance. Warranties are generally of a shorter temrm.
Because of the lower volume of sales in certain locations, many suppliers
do not stock the mobilehome (ouly) appliance and they must be ordered
causing delays from several days up to two weekss Contractors state they
do not like to install a mobilehome hot water heater. Frankly, most

" homeowners simply will not wait - they need hot water, in fact, they have
done so by the thousands and thousands.

Over the past years the HCD Inspectors have written untold health and
safety violations citing the homeowner with a "non-conforming" unit '
simply because the appliance did not have a "for mobilehome use" label.
It is distressing to see that these citations are causing unknown numbers
of homeowmers to rip-out practically new hot water heaters costing some
$350-$500, including installation, to install a new "for mobilehome use"
labelled appliance, We are seeing confrbntations between contractors
end homeowners because of what is perceived to be a ridiculous require-
ment, especially under the circumstances.

We don't believe that the Department can pinpoint oT document where
there has been significant consequences because of installing a regular
appliance in a mobilehome. :

John. we do need a "temporary moratorium" on the current citations
already issiued and the homeowners notified and a permanenf decision at
the earliest date on an emergency basis. We can find ro justifiable
reason on why a homeowner can not install either type of appliance in
e mobilehome when it is connected to natural gas. . o

May we ask for your earliest written response. Thanks, John.

. .o since%/k/
. | ! , Leonard ¢, Wehrman

- . Manufactured Housing Consultant' o
161 Frerrisc-n Drive
Copy to: | . Daly City, CA 94014

Sen Craven
GSMOL
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lizs Susan A, DeSantis, Director

Denartnent of Housing and Comaunity Develonment

3tote of Celiformia )

921 Tenth Street

Sacrzmento, CA 95814 ' \916) 445-4T75

Re: Publishing of Disciplinary Actions Taken
Against lobilehome Dezlers and Salespersons,

Dear lls, DeSanmtis:

Wle are of the sincere belief that the Department should publish,
end malke available to the general public and the mobilehome consumers,
2 summary of the disciplinary and administrative actions taken against
any licensed or unlicensed mobilehome desler or salesperson in the Stete
of California. In addition, to furnish an analysis of the types of
complaints received, the extent, and the levels of investigation that
are performed on the complaints by the Department.

By this letter, we are respectfully requesting such a report with %the
initizl period covering the years 1983 thru 1985 and then semianmually
thereafter. e would consider the general format similar to that pub-
lished by the Department of Reel Estate, a sample of which is attached
for your immediate consideration, but expanded to include the key points
raised in this letter.

With the number of Occupational Licensing Investigators and the high
fee structure for the licensees maintained by the Department for this
purpose, the public and the mobilehome consvniers/purchasers are cate-
gorically entitled to kmow how effective the Department is in performing
their investigative function, an accounting of the intensity for the
investigations, and the final disnosition of any administrative or any
disciplinary action taken. Further, the report will publicly establish
a benchmark and an on-going review of the effectiveness of the proposed
continuing education program mandated by the legislature,

Ms. DeSentis, we feel strongly about the public being informed about
the effectiveness of the dealer and salesperson occupational licensing
program and the continuing educational program, the investigation into
complaints, and the ultimate actiéns that have been taken.'

May we please request your written response to this inquiry? If we
may be of any assistance, please feel free to contact us.. Thank You.'

* Sincerely.

Leonard G. Yehrman
Manufactured Housing Consultant
161 Tranciscan Drive

Copy to: Daly City, CA 94014

Senator Craven
Assemblyman Papan
Assemblyman Grisham
GSMOL

A NG
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(DARREL KLEIN: Background Information)

October 20, 1985

Ramona Mobile Home Park, ILtd.
32133 W. Lindero Canyon Road
Suite 103

Westlake Village, CA 91361

Dear Sir:

We the new residents of Rancho Ramona Mobile Home Park,
would like to meet with you or your respresentatives at
you're earliest possible convenience concerning problems
we are experiencing and problems we might face in the
future. Specifically we are concerned about the condition
of the lots that our homes sit on. Our lots were not pre-
pared properly, and now our homes are in jeopardy of sink-
ing, unless the ground surrounding our homes is raised,
allowing water to properly drain into the street, prevent-
ing water from standing under our homes., With the minimum
amount of rain received thus far since August some of our
homes have already shifted. We are concerned about each
of our investments and our purpose is to protect yours and
ours. :

Perhaps you could provide information to us that we have
so far been unable to have answered by Mobilhome Guild,
the park manager or any of the contractors. Thank you for
your time and concern.
Sincerely,
Residents
Rancho Ramona Mobile Home Park
Ramona, CA
Michael McKown 789-3685
Darrel Klein 789-5707
John Schreiber 789-3391

To set up a meeting please contact one of the above names.,



nancno namona, 1557 H. St. Ramona, CA 92065
A-12

We the undersigned residents of Rancho Ramona Park are also having
questions about the park inspection, potential water dramage ¢
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Desert Sa‘n’ds ' 32-750 Date Palm Dr., #110¢
HOMEOWNERS’ ASSN. Paim-Springs;-CA-82264-
Gectober 19, 19E5 ) Cathedral City, CA 92234

~onorable william Craven

2121 talomar Airport Poad, Suite 100 ref: Iscondido heeiing
Carlsbad, California 92002 Cctober 22, 19£%

_ear Serztor Craven:

At the reguest of your Staff Consultant, we are mailing you our primary

crievances, as it pertains to our tark, the Desert Sands Adult Community
terz, Cathedral City. In the event there exists the possibility that we

’
mey not get on the Agenda at this meeting, we will appreciate our list of
rievences be real into the recoxrd.

[ RIS

Tney are as follows:

1. ADULT FASY. vs. FAVILY FARL (Your S.BE. 213).

2. INADEQUATZ FAINIEZNANCE of pool, spa and street and walkway lighting.

3. SATCTY and SECURITY (inoperable entry gate at all times and
uncontrolled speeding on the Tark's streets.)

4, LACH CF EiTORCLMENT of rARn CWNZR'S own RULZS AlD REGULATICHS

which are, by reference, made a part of homeowners' leases anc
not adhered to by transient, unqualified Fark Manacers (here
today....gone tomorrow ).

5. ASL THAT LECISLATICK RmQUIRE Fark Owners, should they desire to sell,
offer the right of first refusal to residents who wish to purchase
said park and who are currently leasing mobilhome space.

We want you to know that approximately 250 residents in this park are for
your S.B. 213.

Yours very truly,
7 i

yor
~——t )
3 ‘ J
Ceernd 7)) d/mﬂu
LUCE¥E M., FIDLCH, Homeowner
for Desert Sands Homeowners' Association



GOLDEN
STATE
GOLDEN STATE MOBILHOME OWNERS LEAGUE, INC.

~ MOBILHOME L
——— 11021 MAGNOLIA BOULEVARD, GARDEN GROVE, CALIFORNIA

¢ P. O. BOX 876, GARDEN GROVE, CALIFORNIA 92642

~ Owners . (714) 826-4071
. league
Inc. 9360 N. Blackstone #225

Fresno, California 93710
October 17, 1985

John Tennyson
State Capitol Room 3070
Sacramento, Ca. 95814

Dear Mr. Tennyson:

I very much regret it is financially impossible for me to attend the Senate
Select Committee hearing in Escondido October 22, 1985 concerning mobilehome
inspections. I wish the hearing were being held in this area.

As you made note of in the letter from your office, Yes, we have had prob-
lems--big problems. As you also know, I wrote to Senator Craven about some of
these issues and we did receive positive response. What resulted opened up a
"small can of worms" so to speak. We have had some action but certainly many
problems remain.

Enclosed is a copy of a letter from Director DeSantis to your office. (Par-
don the personal scribblings). I certainly would like to have her explain the
sentence "None of the field staff reductions has been in that area". We see
a reduction of services! In 1983 we had 4 field inspectors,The Field Operation
co-ordinator for the 48 northern California counties, plus an office staff all
located here in Fresno where we could communicate our complaints. All 4 of the
inspectors worked in the Fresno area as well as additional staff who worked in
other counties but out of this office. I was told and understand the the field
inspectors often went into other areas as well as services we might get from
someone in another area. We still have 4 inspectors I understand, 1 located here
who works Fresno and Madera Counties. He may be reached by telephone on Thursdays
from 8-10 A.M. At other times and the other inspectors are only available by
telephone message to this office who then relay the complaints or requests. We
do not find these expedient for quickly taking care of problems especially when
it is an emergency.

The following are the particular issues I would like to address:

I. Lack of availability of inspectors especially in emergencies.
(We had a case of sewer problems which occurred on a Friday. The call to the
office said they would relay the message. The call was returned the follow-
ing Tuesday. In the meantime the residents called City Hall and got help.)

II. Difficulty in contactinginspector when complaints are outside of Fresno.

ITI. Lack of proper inspec_tion on installation of a coach om - lot.
( An Associate Director just reported that an inspector drove past a new
coach installation just today but did not make any inspection, didn't even
get out of the car and that this happens often in his park. I also had
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Iv.

VI.

VII.

VIII.

I:.

an Assistant Manager teld me this week that the inspector comes into the
park, drives around but doesn't get out of the car.

Reply by inspector to a resident who questioned some electrical work being
done in the park that "he couldn't do anything, they didn't have a permit".
Was it not his duty to either serve a violation for no permit or report
the situation to the party who could serve a notice of violation?

W, improperly on lots in relation to
lot lines, adjoining structures, etc., even though not according to code
speciiications. Une home owner was told he didn't need to worry,nothing
would be done while he lived there. This has happened more than once.

Most existing parks have never been properly marked to define corner markers
so there 1s no dispute a$ to all Iines. I was told inspectors did not 1in-
sist this be done when the park was originally inspected. Many lots and
many parks could still be done if required by inspectors to conform to Civil
Code 1616. In my Region 4 instances have come in as complaints where lot
lines have been moved without consent of home owner. Lots are then marked
by a slash of paint on the curb. One home owner had two feet of their lot
given to the next door neighber even the home owner had lived there 10 years
was within the lines staked out when he moved in. The managers came onto
the lot while they: were absent, removed many shrubs, all the fancy brick
liners. That was 2 years ago. The two feet remain unattended, unsightly,
shrubs and brick never compensated for.

Reluctance on part of inspectors to issue violations to park owners/managers.
Une mobilehome owner was told,—-"If you push me in respectto manager, 1 will
issue more violations to home owners than you can count."

This' happened when an old park was sold and told escrow could not close un-
til certain violations were corrected. By reducing the price of the park the
escrow did close and the burden of compliance to violations was put upon

the new owner who did nothing. (over 2 years now) Finally, this year we
asked for an inspection of the park condition, especially wiring and sanita-
tion. The park ended up with 75 violations, the majority against the park
owner, with 30 days to correct.

Completion and correction of a violation takes much too long.

The second inspection of the above park was made 72 days later when an MP-1
letter was issued.

It has now been 134 days since the MP-1 letter. I checked about 2 weeks ago
and nothing more had been done.

Why are these allowed to drag on for months and in some cases years?

Improper and inadequate remedies accepted and written off as "finished by
inspectors.

This happened when 1610 (18206) of Title 25 Chapters 2&4 was violated by
park owner. Repairs to the coach amounted to $15,000 paid by Insurance.

The park owner had been extended time past the 30 correction period to

a total of 181 days. Correction of the violation was accepted by the in-
spector and case written off. Because the corrections had been inadequate
the home owner sufferred further damage to the mobilehome so filed a second
claim with the Insurance Co. The park owner was then forced to take care

of the problem correctly, the coach was repaired a 2nd time for an addition-

al $25,000. A1l of this could have been avoided had the inspector taken
action at the end of 30 days given in the first violation.

Park owners are aware of being able to "get by".
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When the park owners was asked by the mobilehome owner why nothing had been
in the 30 days they replied, "We d1dn t have the time and we needed the
money for something else BESIDES we '11 get an extension''----181 days plus a
2nd claim!!!

X. High Permit Fees
Many of the home owner's violations in the park referred to in VI and VII
were installations of back, front, or both lights as recommended by the
Neighborhood Watch Co-ordinator. Many of these lights had been installed
as much as 4 or 5 years ago. Violations for NO PERMITS. Yet the inspector
had been in the park many many times and made no citations until asked to
check on park owner violations. (Do not think that I excuse cr condone violation by
the home owner any more than the park owner-—-but so many of the violations
were so minor in comparison with REAL park problems which affected all
residents.)
Since most home owners do not have access to copies of Tltle 25 Chapters 2 & 4
they did not know they had to have a permit. Many removed the lights be-
cause they felt $40 was too expensive for a permit for a light. Not only
are such lights a deterent to vandalism and burglaris, they also supplement
street lighting which is very inadequate in many parks. This is a real con-
cern for Senior Citizens. One old timer in the park has lights which come
under the same code violation but was told he could keep his. You can
understand how his neighborfeels—--I know for I got a call. '"Why me and
not him.?" How do I answer?

XI. Lack of follow up report by inspector to complaintant such as GSMOL Directors.
I understand all inspections are filed with HCD office also the follow ups
until final conclusion of the violation. Why can't copies be made to. be
sent to complaintant?

Yours truly,

//{f o @ ~ Jz..,ég/

orie Hinkly
Ditector Region 12 GSMOL



:\"‘

) A-24
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DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT T
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March 1, 1985

The Honorable William A. Craven
Member of the Senate

C+=2+0 Farmi+nl Dacm 2070
T21e 2pi o, nCCh ov/V

Sacramentc, CA 95814
Dear Senator Craven:

Thank you for your Jletter of January 22, 1985 concerning HCD's inspection
activities. In your letter, you commented on Ms. Marjorie Hinkly's perception
that our level of field services in the Fresno area have ‘eteriorated within
the last year. e o Gl gt

It is apparent to me that Ms. Hinkly received inaccurate information when sne
spoke with one of our inspectors regarding the bases for staffing assignmerts
or budgEtary requests. 1 have asked John Ventura, Chief of the Division of
Codes & Standards, to personally contact Ms. Hinkly to discuss those matters,
and clearly explain management decisions affecting inspection coverage in the
Fresro area. 1 have asked Mr. Ventura to provide me with an identification --
from that discussion -- of any specific instances involving delays on our part
in responding to consumer complaints or reguests for inspection.

As_1 indicated to you jn my December 11th letter, funding for the Mobilenhome \‘1
Fark Program has not been rediicéd nmor has there been a significant reduction in :

our park program staff, “although increased workload has strained staft#- . ¥
resources 1in some areas. Ms. Hinkly relayed to you information, gained yé,f
anparantiy -from a conversation with one of our inspectors, icentifying a field p
statfing level of 40 inspectors three years <go in contrast with a level of 17 j‘

currently. This is not accurate. [n 1982-B3, HCD was authorized 57 District A~ )
Representative positions. In the current year (1984-85), there are 527 ~ %'
authorized positions. The overall reduction during that period has represented X Yo
ten percent of our field staff, which is responsible for dealing with a variety ~
of programs, in addition to mobilehome park responsibilities. \ o

We have sought to retain our prior levels of staff effort in tﬁe Mobilehome

Park Program. We have also, as I indicated previously, experienced
park-related workload increases in certain geographical areas. However, we

have not had to assume increased park responsibilities in the Central Valley »
area. None of the field staff reductions has been in that area, and today, weN\ "
have deployed the same number of District Representatives in that region as in_- '
the Tast several years. We have also surveyed the level of consumer complaints b
and Tequests Tor investigation in that area and have determined that staff ..-{

response remains at prior satisfactory levels.
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An organizational action was taken recently which was intended to 1improve
overall efficiency without diluting our field effort. Previously, supervisory
as well as inspection staff were located in Fresno; however, in fall of 1983,
we consolidated operations by moving the supervisory personnel to Sacramento.
To my knowledge, this action has not had any effect on the availability of
inspectors in the field.

Senator Craven, 1 hope that our follow-up on this matter is satisfactory from
your standpoint. Mr. Ventura, who will be talking with Ms. Hinkly, directly
oversees our Codes & Standards Division's responsibilities. He implements the
policy direction of this Administration, directs the operational activities of
our field staff and recommends seeking resource adjustments when necessary. MWe
have not found it necessary to request budget augmentations in this area, and
Ms. HYinkly's observations regarding Governor's Office disapproval of such
requests have no basis in fact.

If you desire any further information, I would be pleased to meet with you at
your convenience.

Sincerely,

lusan Aeforti)

. DeSantis
Director

RLL:isd

cc: Senator Ken Maddy
Senator Rose Ann Vuich
John Ventura, HCD
Maurice Priest, GSMOL
Marjorie Hinkly v~
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Additional copies of this publication may be purchased for $4.25 per copy
(includes shipping & handling), plus current California sales tax.

Senate Publications
1020 N Street, Room B-53
Sacramento, CA 95814
916/327-2155

Make checks or money orders payable to SENATE RULES COMMITTEE.






